On Monday, March 25, 2013, the Rules Committee met in the Supreme Court courtroom from 1:00 p.m. to 3:30 p.m.

Members in attendance were:

HON. DENNIS G. EVELEIGH, CHAIR
HON. JON M. ALANDER
HON. BARBARA N. BELLIS
HON. JULIETT L. CRAWFORD
HON. KARI A. DOOLEY
HON. RICHARD W. DYER
HON. MAUREEN M. KEEGAN
HON. ELIOT D. PRESCOTT

The Honorable William M. Bright, Jr. was not in attendance at this meeting. The Honorable Juliett L. Crawford joined the meeting at 2:02 p.m. The Honorable Barbara N. Bellis left the meeting at 3:00 p.m.

Also in attendance were Carl E. Testo, Counsel to the Rules Committee, and Attorney Joseph J. Del Ciampo of the Judicial Branch's Legal Services Unit.

1. The Committee unanimously approved the minutes of the meeting held on February 25, 2013.

The Committee discussed paragraph 13 of those minutes, a proposal submitted by Judge Linda K. Lager, Chief Administrative Judge for Civil Matters, on behalf of the Civil Commission to adopt standard interrogatories and requests for production concerning workers' compensation claims, and instructed the undersigned to prepare the necessary forms and to draft revisions to any rules in which it is necessary to refer to such forms. The Committee also voted unanimously that the commentary to the new interrogatories and requests for production be permanently retained in the Practice Book and that the necessary forms and proposed amended rules as set forth in Appendix A be submitted to public hearing.

2. The Committee considered a report of the Rules Committee Task Force to Study Minimum Continuing Legal Education and proposed rules submitted by Attorney Michael Bowler, Statewide Bar Counsel, at the request of the Task Force, concerning a legal skills course for new bar admittees. Judge Elliot N. Solomon, Chair of the Task Force, addressed the

Committee, as did Attorney Bowler.

After discussion, the Committee voted not to submit the proposed rules to public hearing. Justice Eveleigh and Judges Alander, Dooley and Prescott voted against submitting the proposed rules to a public hearing, and Judges Bellis, Dyer and Keegan voted to submit them.

3. The Committee considered a proposal by Attorney Joseph Del Ciampo to further amend the revisions to Rule 4.4 of the Rules of Professional Conduct that were approved by the Rules Committee at its last meeting.

After discussion, the Committee unanimously voted to submit to public hearing the proposed revision to Rule 4.4 as set forth in Appendix B attached hereto.

4. The Committee considered a proposal by Judge Quinn to amend the rules to provide for limited scope representation and comments thereon from the bench and bar.

After discussion, the Committee made revisions to the proposals and unanimously voted to submit to public hearing the proposed revisions concerning limited scope representation, as set forth in Appendix C attached hereto.

5. The Committee considered letters from Attorneys Hurd Baruch, Charles F. Tucker and John Kreitler concerning the attorney registration requirement in Section 2-27(d) and proposed rules revisions concerning this matter submitted by Attorney Bowler, who addressed the Committee with regard to his proposals.

After discussion, the Committee made revisions to the proposals and unanimously voted to submit to public hearing the proposed revision to Section 2-55 and proposed new Section 2-55A, as set forth in Appendix D attached hereto.

6. The Committee considered a proposal submitted by Judge Linda K. Lager, Chief Administrative Judge for Civil Matters, on behalf of the civil presiding judges on the Civil Commission, to amend Section 14-8 concerning certificates of closed pleadings and Section 17-44 concerning summary judgments.

After discussion, the Committee unanimously voted to submit to public hearing the proposed revisions to Section 14-8 and to Section 17-44, as set forth in Appendix E attached hereto.

7. The Committee considered proposals submitted by Judge Barbara M. Quinn, Chief Court Administrator, to amend the rules concerning administrative appeals filed under C.G.S. Sec. 4-183.

After discussion, the Committee unanimously voted to submit to public hearing the proposed rules concerning administrative appeals as set forth in Appendix F attached hereto. Minutes 3-25-13 APPROVED (Rules Committee)

The revisions to Sections 14-8 and 17-44 submitted by Judge Quinn with these proposals were not considered, since those sections were revised earlier in the meeting. (See paragraph 6 above.)

8. The Committee considered correspondence from Judge Leslie Olear with regard to Section 5-1 concerning the filing of trial briefs.

After discussion, the Committee unanimously voted to submit to public hearing the proposed revision to Section 5-1, as set forth in Appendix G attached hereto.

9. The Committee considered a proposal submitted by Judge Barbara M. Quinn on behalf of the Judges' Advisory Committee on E-filing to amend Sections 4-2, 4-7, 11-20A, 11-20B and 25-59B to expand the scope of information that should not be filed with the court or that should be redacted before it is filed.

After discussion, the Committee tabled the proposal.

10. The Committee considered a letter from Attorney Barry C. Hawkins, President of the CBA, concerning the addition of elder law to Rule 7.4A of the Rules of Professional Conduct as a field of law in which attorneys may be certified as specialists. Attorney Mark A. Dubois addressed the Committee concerning this matter.

After discussion, the Committee tabled the proposal.

11. The Committee considered a proposal submitted by Judge Linda K. Lager on behalf of the Civil Commission to amend Sections 10-8, 10-30, 10-31, 10-39 through 10-42, 13-1, 13-3, 13-6 and 13-9 and Forms 201 through 206 and to delete Section 5-9.

After discussion, the Committee made some revisions to the proposals and unanimously voted to submit to public hearing the proposed revisions to Sections 10-8, 10-30, 10-31, 10-39 through 10-42, 13-1, 13-3, 13-6 and 13-9 and Forms 201 through 206, and the repeal of Section 5-9, as set forth in Appendix H attached hereto.

12. The Committee tabled a proposal by the CBA to adopt a new rule that would allow attorneys admitted in a reciprocal jurisdiction to practice in Connecticut before applying for admission and while their application is pending, and comments from Attorney Patricia King, Chief Disciplinary Counsel, concerning the proposal.

Respectfully submitted.

Carl F Testo

Counsel to the Rules Committee

APPENDIX A (032513) mins.

Sec. 13-6. Interrogatories; In General

- (a) In any civil action, in any probate appeal, or in any administrative appeal where the judicial authority finds it reasonably probable that evidence outside the record will be required, any party may serve in accordance with Sections 10-12 through 10-17 written interrogatories, which may be in electronic format, upon any other party to be answered by the party served. Written interrogatories may be served upon any party without leave of the judicial authority at any time after the return day. Except as provided in subsection (c) or where the interrogatories are served electronically as provided in Section 10-13 and in a format that allows the recipient to electronically insert the answers in the transmitted document, the party serving interrogatories shall leave sufficient space following each interrogatory in which the party to whom the interrogatories are directed can insert the answer. In the event that an answer requires more space than that provided on interrogatories that were not served electronically and in a format that allows the recipient to electronically insert the answer shall be continued on a separate sheet of paper which shall be attached to the completed answers.
- (b) Interrogatories may relate to any matters which can be inquired into under Sections 13-2 through 13-5 and the answers may be used at trial to the extent permitted by the rules of evidence. In all personal injury actions alleging liability based on the operation or ownership of a motor vehicle or alleging liability based on the ownership, maintenance or control of real property, the interrogatories shall be limited to those set forth in Forms 201, 202, [and/or] 203, 208 and/or 210 of the rules of practice, unless upon motion, the judicial authority determines that such interrogatories are inappropriate or inadequate in the particular action. These forms are set forth in the Appendix of Forms in this volume. Unless the judicial authority orders otherwise, the frequency of use of interrogatories in all actions except those for which interrogatories have been set forth in Forms 201, 202, [and/or] 203, 208 and/or 210 of the rules of practice is not limited.
- (c) In lieu of serving the interrogatories set forth in Forms 201, 202, [and/or] 203, 208 and/or 210 on a party who is represented by counsel, the moving party may serve on such party a notice of interrogatories, which shall not include the actual interrogatories to be answered, but shall instead set forth the number of the Practice Book form containing

such interrogatories and the name of the party to whom the interrogatories are directed. The party to whom such notice is directed shall in his or her response set forth each interrogatory immediately followed by that party's answer thereto.

(d) The party serving interrogatories or the notice of interrogatories shall not file them with the court.

COMMENTARY: The revisions reference the addition of new forms 208 and 210 to the Appendix of Forms.

Sec. 13-8. —Objections to Interrogatories

- (a) Objections to interrogatories shall be immediately preceded by the interrogatory objected to, shall set forth reasons for the objection, shall be signed by the attorney or self-represented party making them and shall be filed with the court pursuant to Section 13-7. No objection may be filed with respect to interrogatories which have been set forth in Forms 201, 202, [and/or] 203, 208 and/or 210 of the rules of practice for use in connection with Section 13-6.
- (b) No objections to interrogatories shall be placed on the short calendar list until an affidavit by either counsel is filed certifying that bona fide attempts have been made to resolve the differences concerning the subject matter of the objection and that counsel have been unable to reach an accord. The affidavit shall set forth the date of the objection, the name of the party who filed the objection and the name of the party to whom the objection was addressed. The affidavit shall also recite the date, time and place of any conference held to resolve the differences and the names of all persons participating therein or, if no conference has been held, the reasons for the failure to hold such a conference. If any objection to an interrogatory is overruled, the interrogatory shall be answered, and the answer served within twenty days after the judicial authority ruling unless otherwise ordered by the judicial authority.
- (c) An interrogatory otherwise proper is not objectionable merely because it involves more than one fact or relates to the application of law to facts.

COMMENTARY: The revisions reference the addition of new forms 208 and 210 to the Appendix of Forms.

Sec. 13-9. Requests for Production, Inspection and Examination; In General

- (a) In any civil action, in any probate appeal, or in any administrative appeal where the judicial authority finds it reasonably probable that evidence outside the record will be required, any party may serve in accordance with Sections 10-12 through 10-17 upon any other party a request to afford the party submitting the request the opportunity to inspect, copy, photograph or otherwise reproduce designated documents (including, but not limited to, writings, drawings, graphs, charts, photographs, phonograph records and electronically stored information as provided in subsection (d)) or to inspect and copy, test or sample any tangible things in the possession, custody or control of the party upon whom the request is served or to permit entry upon designated land or other property for the purpose of inspection, measuring, surveying, photographing, testing or sampling the property or any designated object or operation thereon. Such requests, will be governed by the provisions of Sections 13-2 through 13-5. In all personal injury actions alleging liability based on the operation or ownership of a motor vehicle or alleging liability based on the ownership, maintenance or control of real property, the requests for production shall be limited to those set forth in Forms 204, 205, [and/or] 206, 209 and/or 211 of the rules of practice, unless, upon motion, the judicial authority determines that such requests for production are inappropriate or inadequate in the particular action. These forms are set forth in the Appendix of Forms in this volume.
- (b) Requests for production may be served upon any party without leave of court at any time after the return day. In lieu of serving the requests for production set forth in Forms 204, 205, [and/or] 206, 209 and/or 211 on a party who is represented by counsel, the moving party may serve on such party a notice of requests for production, which shall not include the actual requests, but shall instead set forth the number of the Practice Book form containing such requests and the name of the party to whom the requests are directed.
- (c) The request shall clearly designate the items to be inspected either individually or by category. The request or, if applicable, the notice of requests for production shall specify a reasonable time, place and manner of making the inspection. Unless the judicial authority orders otherwise, the frequency of use of requests for production in all actions except those for which requests for production have been set forth in Forms 204, 205, [and/or] 206, 209 and/or 211 of the rules of practice is not limited.

- (d) If information has been electronically stored, and if a request for production does not specify a form for producing a type of electronically stored information, the responding party shall produce the information in a form in which it is ordinarily maintained or in a form that is reasonably usable. A party need not produce the same electronically stored information in more than one form.
- (e) The party serving such request or notice of requests for production shall not file it with the court.
- (f) A party seeking the production of a written authorization in compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act to inspect and make copies of protected health information, or a written authorization in compliance with the Public Health Service Act to inspect and make copies of alcohol and drug records that are protected by that act, shall file a motion pursuant to Section 13-11A. A motion need not be filed to obtain such authorization in actions to which Forms 204 and 205 of the rules of practice apply.

COMMENTARY: The revisions reference the addition of new forms 209 and 211 to the Appendix of Forms.

Sec. 13-10. —Responses to Requests for Production; Objections

- (a) The party to whom the request is directed or such party's attorney shall serve a written response, which may be in electronic format, within thirty days after the date of certification of service, in accordance with Sections 10-12 through 10-17, of the request or, if applicable, the notice of requests for production on the responding party, unless:
- (1) Counsel file with the court a written stipulation extending the time within which responses may be served; or
- (2) The party to whom the requests for production are directed, after service in accordance with Sections 10-12 through 10-17, files a request for extension of time, for not more than thirty days, within the initial thirty-day period. Such request shall contain a certification by the requesting party that the case has not been assigned for trial. Such request shall be deemed to have been automatically granted by the judicial authority on the date of filing, unless within ten days of such filing the party who has served the requests for production or the notice of requests for production shall file objection thereto. A party shall be entitled to one such request for each set of requests for production served upon that party; or

- (3) Upon motion, the court allows a longer time.
- (b) The response of the party shall be inserted directly on the original request served in accordance with Section 13-9 and shall state, with respect to each item or category, that inspection and related activities will be permitted as requested, unless the request or any part thereof is objected to. If, pursuant to subsection (b) of Section 13-9, a notice of requests for production is served in lieu of requests for production, the party to whom such notice is directed shall in his or her response set forth each request for production immediately followed by that party's response thereto. No objection may be filed with respect to requests for productions set forth in Forms 204, 205, [and/or] 206, 209 and/or 211 of the rules of practice for use in connection with Section 13-9. Where a request calling for submission of copies of documents is not objected to, those copies shall be appended to the copy of the response served upon the party making the request. A party objecting to one or more requests shall file an objection to the request. Objections to requests for production shall be immediately preceded by the request objected to, shall set forth reasons for the objection, shall be signed by the attorney or self-represented party making them and shall be filed with the court. Objection by a party to certain parts of the request shall not relieve that party of the obligation to respond to those portions to which that party has not objected within the thirty-day period. The party serving the request or the notice of requests for production may move for an order under Section 13-14 with respect to any failure on the part of the party to whom the request or notice is addressed to respond.
- (c) No objection to any such request shall be placed on the short calendar list until an affidavit by either counsel is filed certifying that bona fide attempts have been made to resolve the differences concerning the subject matter of the objection and that counsel have been unable to reach an accord. The affidavit shall set forth the date of the objection, the name of the party who filed the objection and the name of the party to whom the objection was addressed. The affidavit shall also recite the date, time and place of any conference held to resolve the differences and the names of all persons participating therein, or, if no conference has been held, the reasons for the failure to hold such a conference. If an objection to any part of a request for production is overruled, compliance with the request shall be made at a time to be set by the judicial authority.

COMMENTARY: The revisions reference the addition of new forms 209 and 211 to the Appendix of Forms.

Form 202 Defendant's Interrogatories

No. CV-(Plaintiff) VS. (Defendant)

: SUPERIOR COURT : JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF

: AT : (Date)

The undersigned, on behalf of the Defendant, hereby propounds the following interrogatories to be answered by the Plaintiff ________, under oath, within thirty (30) days of the filing hereof [insofar as the disclosure sought will be of assistance in the defense of this action and can be provided by the Plaintiff with substantially greater facility than could otherwise be obtained] in compliance with Practice Book § 13-2.

Definition: "You" shall mean the Plaintiff to whom these interrogatories are directed except that if suit has been instituted by the representative of the estate of a decedent, ward, or incapable person, "you" shall also refer to the Plaintiff's decedent, ward or incapable person unless the context of an interrogatory clearly indicates otherwise.

In answering these interrogatories, the Plaintiff(s), is (are) required to provide all information within their knowledge, possession or power. If an interrogatory has subparts, answer each subpart separately and in full, and do not limit the answer to the interrogatory as a whole. If any interrogatories cannot be answered in full, answer to the extent possible.

- (1) State the following:
- (a) your full name and any other name(s) by which you have been known;
- (b) your date of birth;
- (c) your motor vehicle operator's license number;
- (d) your home address;
- (e) your business address;
- (f) if you were not the owner of the subject vehicle, the name and address of the owner or lessor of the subject vehicle on the date of the alleged occurrence.
- (2) Identify and list each injury you claim to have sustained as a result of the incidents alleged in the Complaint.
 - (3) When, where and from whom did you first receive treatment for said injuries?
- (4) If you were treated at a hospital for injuries sustained in the alleged incident, state the name and location of each hospital and the dates of such treatment and confinement therein.
- (5) State the name and address of each physician, therapist or other source of treatment for the conditions or injuries you sustained as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint.
- (6) When and from whom did you last receive any medical attention for injuries alleged to have been sustained as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint?
- (7) On what date were you fully recovered from the injuries or conditions alleged in your Complaint?

- (8) If you claim you are not fully recovered, state precisely from what injuries or conditions you are presently suffering?
- (9) Are you presently under the care of any doctor or other health care provider for the treatment of injuries alleged to have been sustained as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint?
- (10) If the answer to Interrogatory #9 is in the affirmative, state the name and address of each physician or other health care provider who is treating you.
- (11) Do you claim any present disability resulting from injuries or conditions allegedly sustained as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint?
 - (12) If so, state the nature of the disability claimed.
 - (13) Do you claim any permanent disability resulting from said incident?
 - (14) If the answer to Interrogatory #13 is in the affirmative, please answer the following:
 - (a) list the parts of your body which are disabled:
- (b) list the motions, activities or use of your body which you have lost or which you are unable to perform;
 - (c) state the percentage of loss of use claimed as to each part of your body;
- (d) state the name and address of the person who made the prognosis for permanent disability and the percentage of loss of use;
 - (e) list the date for each such prognosis.
- (15) If you were or are confined to your home or your bed as a result of injuries or conditions sustained as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint, state the dates you were so confined.
- (16) List each medical report received by you or your attorney relating to your alleged injuries or conditions by stating the name and address of the treating doctor or other health care provider, and of any doctor or health care person you anticipate calling as a trial witness, who provided each such report and the date thereof.
- (17) List each item of expense which you claim to have incurred as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint, the amount thereof and state the name and address of the person or organization to whom each item has been paid or is payable.
- (18) For each item of expense identified in response to Interrogatory #17, if any such expense, or portion thereof, has been paid or reimbursed or is reimbursable by an insurer, state, as to each such item of expense, the name of the insurer that made such payment or reimbursement or that is responsible for such reimbursement.
- (19) If, during the ten year period prior to the date of the incident alleged in the Complaint, you were under a doctor's care for any conditions which were in any way similar or related to those identified and listed in your response to Interrogatory #2, state the nature of said conditions, the dates on which treatment was received, and the name of the doctor or health care provider.
- (20) If, during the ten year period prior to the date of the incident alleged in your Complaint, you were involved in any incident in which you received personal injuries similar or related to those identified and listed in your response to Interrogatory #2, please answer the following with respect to each such earlier incident:

- (a) on what date and in what manner did you sustain such injuries?
- (b) did you make a claim against anyone as a result of said accident?
- (c) if so, provide the name and address of the person or persons against whom a claim was made;
- (d) if suit was brought, state the name and location of the Court, the return date of the suit, and the docket number;
 - (e) state the nature of the injuries received in said accident;
 - (f) state the name and address of each physician who treated you for said injuries;
 - (g) state the dates on which you were so treated;
 - (h) state the nature of the treatment received on each such date:
- (i) if you are presently or permanently disabled as a result of said injuries, please state the nature of such disability, the name and address of each physician who diagnosed said disability and the date of each such diagnosis.
- (21) If you were involved in any incident in which you received personal injuries since the date of the incident alleged in the Complaint, please answer the following:
 - (a) on what date and in what manner did you sustain said injuries?
 - (b) did you make a claim against anyone as a result of said accident?
- (c) if so, provide the name and address of the person or persons against whom a claim was made:
- (d) if suit was brought, state the name and location of the Court, the return date of the suit, and the docket number;
 - (e) state the nature of the injuries received in said accident;
 - (f) state the name and address of each physician who treated you for said injuries;
 - (g) state the dates on which you were so treated;
 - (h) state the nature of the treatment received on each such date:
- (i) if you are presently or permanently disabled as a result of said injuries, please state the nature of such disability, the name and address of each physician who diagnosed said disability and the date of each such diagnosis.
- (22) Please state the name and address of any medical service provider who has rendered an opinion in writing or through testimony that you have sustained a permanent disability to any body part other than those listed in response to Interrogatories #13, #14, #20 or #21, and:
 - (a) list each such part of your body that has been assessed a permanent disability;
 - (b) state the percentage of loss of use assessed as to each part of your body;
 - (c) state the date on which each such assessment was made.

- (23) If you claim that as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint you were prevented from following your usual occupation, or otherwise lost time from work, please provide the following information:
 - (a) the name and address of your employer on the date of the incident alleged in the Complaint;
- (b) the nature of your occupation and a precise description of your job responsibilities with said employer on the date of the incident alleged in the Complaint;
- (c) your average, weekly earnings, salary, or income received from said employment for the year preceding the date of the incident alleged in the Complaint;
- (d) the date following the date of the incident alleged in the Complaint on which you resumed the duties of said employment;
- (e) what loss of income do you claim as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint and how is said loss computed?
- (f) the dates on which you were unable to perform the duties of your occupation and lost time from work as a result of injuries or conditions claimed to have been sustained as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint;
- (g) the names and addresses of each employer for whom you worked for three years prior to the date of the incident alleged in your Complaint.
 - (24) Do you claim an impairment of earning capacity?
- (25) List any other expenses or loss and the amount thereof not already set forth and which you claim to have incurred as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint.
- (26) If you have signed a covenant not to sue, a release or discharge of any claim you had, have or may have against any person, corporation or other entity as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint, please state in whose favor it was given, the date thereof, and the consideration paid to you for giving it.
- (27) If you or anyone on your behalf agreed or made an agreement with any person, corporation or other entity to limit in any way the liability of such person, corporation or other entity as a result of any claim you have or may have as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint, please state in whose favor it was given, the date thereof, and the consideration paid to you for giving it.
- (28) If since the date of the incident alleged in your Complaint, you have made any claims for Workers' Compensation benefits, state the nature of such claims and the dates on which they were made.
- (29) Have you made any statements, as defined in Practice Book Section 13-1, to any person regarding any of the events or happenings alleged in your Complaint?

COMMENT

This interrogatory is intended to include party statements made to a representative of an insurance company prior to involvement of defense counsel.

- (30) State the names and addresses of all persons known to you who were present at the time of the incident alleged in your Complaint or who observed or witnessed all or part of the accident.
- (31) As to each individual named in response to Interrogatory #30, state whether to your knowledge, or the knowledge of your attorney, such individual has given any statement or statements as defined in Practice Book Section 13-1 concerning the subject matter of your Complaint or alleged injuries. If your answer to this Interrogatory is affirmative, state also:

- (a) the date on which such statement or statements were taken;
- (b) the names and addresses of the person or persons who took such statement or statements;
- (c) the names and addresses of any person or persons present when such statement or statements were taken;
- (d) whether such statement or statements were written, made by recording device or taken by court reporter or stenographer;
- (e) the names and addresses of any person or persons having custody or a copy or copies of such statement or statements.
- (32) Are you aware of any photographs depicting the accident scene, any vehicle involved in the incident alleged in the Complaint, or any condition of injury alleged to have been caused by the incident alleged in the Complaint? If so, for each set of photographs taken of each such subject by each photographer, please state:
 - (a) the name and address of the photographer, other than an expert who will not testify at trial;
 - (b) the dates on which such photographs were taken;
 - (c) the subject (e.g., "Plaintiff's vehicle," "scene," etc.);
 - (d) the number of photographs.
- (33) If you were the operator of any motor vehicle involved in the incident that is the subject of this action, please state whether you consumed or used any alcoholic beverages, drugs or medications within the eight (8) hours next preceding the time of the incident alleged in the Complaint and, if so, indicate what you consumed or used, how much you consumed, and when
- (34) Please state whether, within eight (8) hours after the incident alleged in the Complaint, any testing was performed to determine the presence of alcohol, drugs or other medications in your blood, and, if so, state:
 - (a) the name and address of the hospital, person or entity performing such test or screen;
 - (b) the date and time;
 - (c) the results.
- (35) Please identify surveillance material discoverable under Practice Book Section 13-3 (c), by stating the name and address of any person who obtained or prepared any and all recordings, by film, photograph, videotape, audiotape or any other digital or electronic means, of any party concerning this lawsuit or its subject matter, including any transcript thereof which are in your possession or control or in the possession or control of your attorney, and state the date on which each such recordings were obtained and the person or persons of whom each such recording was made.

COMMENT: The following two interrogatories are intended to identify situations in which a plaintiff has applied for and received workers' compensation benefits. If compensation benefits were paid, then the supplemental interrogatories and requests for production may be served on the plaintiff without leave of the court if the compensation carrier does not intervene in the action.

- (36) Did you make a claim for workers' compensation benefits as a result of the incident/occurrence alleged in the complaint?
- (37) Did you receive workers' compensation benefits as a result of the incident/occurrence alleged in the complaint?

(NEW) Form 208 Defendant's Supplemental Interrogatories Workers' Compensation Benefits – No Intervening Plaintiff

No. CV-(Plaintiff) VS. (Defendant) : SUPERIOR COURT : JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF

: AT

: (Date)

The undersigned, on behalf of the Defendant, hereby propounds the following interrogatories to be answered by the Plaintiff _______, under oath, within thirty (30) days of the filing hereof insofar as the disclosure sought will be of assistance in the defense of this action and can be provided by the Plaintiff with substantially greater facility than could otherwise be obtained.

Definition: "You" shall mean the Plaintiff to whom these interrogatories are directed except that if suit has been instituted by the representative of the estate of a decedent, ward, or incapable person, "you" shall also refer to the Plaintiff's decedent, ward or incapable person unless the context of an interrogatory clearly indicates otherwise.

In answering these interrogatories, the Plaintiff(s), is (are) required to provide all information within their knowledge, possession or power. If an interrogatory has subparts, answer each subpart separately and in full, and do not limit the answer to the interrogatory as a whole. If any interrogatories cannot be answered in full, answer to the extent possible.

- (1) State your full name, home address, and business address.
- (2) State the workers' compensation claim number and the date of injury of each workers' compensation claim that you have filed as a result of the incident/occurrence alleged in the complaint.
- (3) State the total amount paid on your behalf on each of the claims filed as a result of the incident/occurrence alleged in the complaint and referred to in interrogatory # 2, and if known, specify the amount of medical benefits, loss of income benefits, and specific award benefits, and if unknown, provide an authorization for the same.
- (4) Identify any First Report of Injury, Notice of Claim for Compensation, Notice of Intention to Reduce of Discontinue Benefits, Notice to Compensation Commissioner and Employee of Intention to Contest Employee's Right to Compensation Benefits, and any reports of medical exams requested by the commissioner, respondent and/or employer arising out of the incident/occurrence alleged in the complaint.
- (5) Identify any voluntary agreements, approved stipulations to date, approved full and final stipulations and findings and awards, and findings and denials arising out of the incident/occurrence alleged in the complaint and which formed the basis for your answer to interrogatory # 3.
- (6) Which of your claims arising out of the incident/occurrence alleged in the complaint and referenced in your answer to interrogatory # 2 are still open?

COMMENT: These supplemental interrogatories are specifically directed at eliciting information about any workers' compensation claims, benefits and agreements. Unless the compensation carrier is a party to the action, it can be difficult to obtain this information. Often the plaintiff's lawyers do not represent the client in the workers' compensation case, and although this information is available in the workers' compensation file, providing these records to lawyers not involved in the compensation case could be time-consuming for the workers' compensation office staff. If compensation benefits were paid, these supplemental interrogatories may be served on the plaintiff without leave of the court if there is no intervening plaintiff in the action.

(Attorney Signature)

(NEW) Form 209

Defendant's Supplemental Requests for Production Workers' Compensation Benefits – No Intervening Plaintiff

No. CV- (Plaintiff)	: SUPERIOR COURT : JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF	
VS.	: AT	
(Defendant)	: (Date)	
The Defendant(s) hereby request(s) that the Placopies of the documents described in the following requipment Defendant(s) the opportunity or, where requested, sufficient photograph or otherwise reproduce said documents. The written authorizations shall take place at the offices of (30) days after the service of the Requests for Production Plaintiff(s) are required to provide all information within the production request cannot be answered in full, answer to	ests for production, or afford counsel for said sient written authorization, to inspect, copy, ne production of such documents, copies or not later than thirty on. In answering these production requests, the their possession, custody or control. If any	
(1) Produce a copy of the First Report of Injury (Form 30C), Notice of Intention to Reduce or Discontinu Compensation Commissioner and Employee of Intentio Benefits (Form 43).	e Benefits (Form 36), and Notice to	
(2) Produce a copy of all of the approved volunt approved full and final stipulations, findings and awards more of the claims referenced in your answer to interrog	, and findings and denials that relate to one or	
(3) Produce a copy of all reports of medical exa and/or employer that were prepared concerning any of interrogatory # 2 on Form 208.	ms requested by the commissioner, respondent the claims referenced in your answer to	
(4) If you are unable to specify the amount of m specific award benefits paid on your behalf, provide an		
COMMENT: These supplemental requests for production are specifically directed at eliciting information about any workers' compensation claims, benefits and agreements. Unless the compensation carrier is a party to the action, it can be difficult to obtain this information. Often the plaintiff's lawyers do not represent the client in the workers' compensation case, and although this information is available in the workers' compensation file, providing these records to lawyers not involved in the compensation case could be time-consuming for the workers' compensation office staff. If compensation benefits were paid, these supplemental requests for production may be served on the plaintiff without leave of the court if there is no intervening plaintiff in the action.		
	DEFENDANT,	
	BY	
CERTIFICATION		
This is to certify that a copy of the foregoing has, 20 to	s been mailed, this day of	
	(Attorney Signature)	

(NEW) Form 210 Defendant's Interrogatories Workers' Compensation Benefits – Intervening Plaintiff

No. CV- (Plaintiff)	: SUPERIOR COURT : JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF
VS. (Defendant)	: AT : (Date)
(Beleficially)	. (Date)
The undersigned, on behalf of the Defendant, he be answered by the Intervening Plaintiff	, under oath, within thirty (30) will be of assistance in the defense of this action stantially greater facility than could otherwise be ntiff to whom these interrogatories are directed to of the estate of a decedent, ward, or incapable adecedent, ward or incapable person unless the h, is (are) required to provide all information ogatory has subparts, answer each subpart interrogatory as a whole. If any interrogatories
(1) State the name, business address, business relationship to the workers' compensation lien holder of t	
(2) State the workers' compensation claim numb compensation claim that gave rise to the lien asserted by	
(3) State the total amount paid on each claim ref specifying the amount of medical benefits, loss of income	
(4) Identify any First Report of Injury, Notice of C Reduce of Discontinue Benefits, Notice to Compensation Contest Employee's Right to Compensation Benefits, an commissioner, respondents and/or employer arising out complaint.	n Commissioner and Employee of Intention to d any reports of medical exams requested by the
(5) Identify any voluntary agreements, approved stipulations and findings and awards, and findings and d	
(6) Identify the claims referenced in your answer	to interrogatory # 2 that are still open.
COMMENT: These standard interrogatories are intended to to the limited role and limited material information in the workers' compinterrogatories directed to plaintiffs place an unnecessary burden on the compensation carrier to produce information and documentation, in material by the same interrogatories served upon the plaintiff in the case.	e parties, result in discovery disputes, and require the
	DEFENDANT,
	BY
I,, hereby certify the responses thereto and that they are true and accurate to	at I have reviewed the above Interrogatories and the best of my knowledge and belief.
•	•

	(Plaintiff)	
Subscribed and sworn to before me this	day of	, 20
	Notary Public	
CERTIF	ICATION	
This is to certify that a copy of the foregoing, 20 to		day of
	(Attorney Signature)	

(NEW) Form 211 Defendant's Requests for Production Workers' Compensation - Intervening Plaintiff

No. CV- (Plaintiff)	: SUPERIOR COURT : JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF
VS.	: AT
(Defendant)	: (Date)
The Defendant(s) hereby request(s) that the Int Defendant(s) with copies of the documents described in counsel for said Defendant(s) the opportunity or, where inspect, copy, photography or otherwise reproduce said copies or written authorizations shall take place at the othirty (30) days after the service of the Requests for Prother Plaintiff(s) are required to provide all information with	the following requests for production, or afford requested, sufficient written authorization, to documents. The production of such documents, ffices of not later than duction. In answering these production requests,
the Plaintiff(s) are required to provide all information with production request cannot be answered in full, answer to (1) Produce a copy of the First Report of Injury (Form 30C), Notice of Intention to Reduce or Discontinual Compensation Commissioner and Employee of Intention Benefits (Form 43).	o the extent possible. (Form FRI), Notice of Claim for Compensation to Benefits (Form 36), and Notice to
(2) Produce a copy of all of the approved volunt approved full and final stipulations, findings and awards more of the claims referenced in your answer to interrog	, and findings and denials that relate to one or
(3) Produce a copy of all reports of medical exa and/or employer that were prepared concerning any of tinterrogatory # 2 on Form 210.	ms requested by the commissioner, respondent the claims referenced in your answer to
(4) Produce a copy of your workers' compensat	ion lien calculations.
COMMENT: These standard requests for production are int compensation carrier to the limited role and limited material informatic standard requests for production directed to plaintiffs place an unnece require the compensation carrier to produce information and documer engendered by the same requests for production served upon the pla	on in the workers' compensation lien holder's file. The existing essary burden on the parties, result in discovery disputes, and nation, in many instances, that is duplicative of the responses
	DEFENDANT,
	BY
CERTIFICA	ATION
This is to certify that a copy of the foregoing has, 20 to	• ————————
•	(Attorney Signature)

APPENDIX B (032513mins)

Rule 4.4. Respect for Rights of Third Persons

- (a) In representing a client, a lawyer shall not use means that have no substantial purpose other than to embarrass, delay, or burden a third person, or use methods of obtaining evidence that violate the legal rights of such a person.
- (b) A lawyer who receives a document <u>or electronically stored information</u> relating to the representation of the lawyer's client and knows or reasonably should know that the document <u>or electronically stored information</u> was inadvertently sent shall promptly notify the sender.

COMMENTARY: Responsibility to a client requires a lawyer to subordinate the interests of others to those of the client, but that responsibility does not imply that a lawyer may disregard the rights of third persons. It is impractical to catalogue all such rights, but they include legal restrictions on methods of obtaining evidence from third persons and unwarranted intrusions into privileged relationships, such as the client-lawyer relationship.

Subsection (b) recognizes that lawyers sometimes receive a document[s] or electronically stored information that [were] was mistakenly sent or produced by opposing parties or their lawyers. A document or electronically stored information is inadvertently sent when it is accidentally transmitted, such as when an email or letter is misaddressed or a document or electronically stored information is accidentally included with information that was intentionally transmitted. If a lawyer knows or reasonably should know that such a document or electronically stored information was sent inadvertently, then this Rule requires the lawyer to promptly notify the sender in order to permit that person to take protective measures. Whether the lawyer is required to take additional steps, such as returning the document or electronically stored information, is a matter of law beyond the scope of these Rules, as is the question of whether the privilege status of a document or electronically stored information has been waived. Similarly, this Rule does not address the legal duties of a lawyer who receives a document or electronically stored information that the lawyer knows or reasonably should know may have been inappropriately obtained by the sending person. For purposes of this Rule, "document or electronically stored information" includes, in addition to paper documents, email and other forms of

electronically stored information, including embedded data (commonly referred to as "metadata"), that is [e-mail or other electronic modes of transmission] subject to being read or put into readable form. Metadata in electronic documents creates an obligation under this Rule only if the receiving lawyer knows or reasonably should know that the metadata was inadvertently sent to the receiving lawyer.

Some lawyers may choose to return a document or delete electronically stored information unread, for example, when the lawyer learns before receiving it that it was inadvertently sent. Where a lawyer is not required by applicable law to do so, the decision to voluntarily return such a document or delete electronically stored information is a matter of professional judgment ordinarily reserved to the lawyer. See Rules 1.2 and 1.4.

APPENDIX C (032513) mins

Rule 1.5. Fees

- (a) A lawyer shall not make an agreement for, charge, or collect an unreasonable fee or an unreasonable amount for expenses. The factors to be considered in determining the reasonableness of a fee include the following:
- (1) The time and labor required, the novelty and difficulty of the questions involved, and the skill requisite to perform the legal service properly;
- (2) The likelihood, if made known to the client, that the acceptance of the particular employment will preclude other employment by the lawyer;
 - (3) The fee customarily charged in the locality for similar legal services;
 - (4) The amount involved and the results obtained:
 - (5) The time limitations imposed by the client or by the circumstances;
 - (6) The nature and length of the professional relationship with the client;
- (7) The experience, reputation, and ability of the lawyer or lawyers performing the services; and
 - (8) Whether the fee is fixed or contingent.
- (b) The scope of the representation, the basis or rate of the fee and expenses for which the client will be responsible, shall be communicated to the client, in writing, before or within a reasonable time after commencing the representation, except when the lawyer will charge a regularly represented client on the same basis or rate. Any changes in the basis or rate of the fee or expenses shall also be communicated to the client in writing before the fees or expenses to be billed at higher rates are actually incurred. In any representation in which the lawyer and the client agree that the lawyer will file a limited appearance, the limited appearance engagement agreement shall also include the following: identification of the proceeding in which the lawyer will file the limited appearance; identification of the court events for which the lawyer will appear on behalf of the client; and notification to the client that after the limited appearance services have been completed, the lawyer will file a Certificate of Completion of Limited Appearance with the Court, which will serve to terminate the lawyer's obligation to the client in the matter, and as to which the client will have no right to object. Any change in the scope of the representation requires the client's informed consent, shall be confirmed to the client in

writing, and shall require the lawyer to file a new limited appearance with the court reflecting the change(s) in the scope of representation. This subsection shall not apply to public defenders or in situations where the lawyer will be paid by the court or a state agency.

- (c) A fee may be contingent on the outcome of the matter for which the service is rendered, except in a matter in which a contingent fee is prohibited by subsection (d) or other law. A contingent fee agreement shall be in a writing signed by the client and shall state the method by which the fee is to be determined, including the percentage or percentages of the recovery that shall accrue to the lawyer as a fee in the event of settlement, trial or appeal, whether and to what extent the client will be responsible for any court costs and expenses of litigation, and whether such expenses are to be deducted before or after the contingent fee is calculated. The agreement must clearly notify the client of any expenses for which the client will be liable whether or not the client is the prevailing party. Upon conclusion of a contingent fee matter, the lawyer shall provide the client with a written statement stating the outcome of the matter and, if there is a recovery, showing the remittance to the client and the method of its determination.
 - (d) A lawyer shall not enter into an arrangement for, charge, or collect:
- (1) Any fee in a domestic relations matter, the payment or amount of which is contingent upon the securing of a dissolution of marriage or civil union or upon the amount of alimony or support, or property settlement in lieu thereof; or
 - (2) A contingent fee for representing a defendant in a criminal case.
- (e) A division of fee between lawyers who are not in the same firm may be made only if:
- (1) The client is advised in writing of the compensation sharing agreement and of the participation of all the lawyers involved, and does not object; and
 - (2) The total fee is reasonable.

COMMENTARY: Basis or Rate of Fee. Subsection (a) requires that lawyers charge fees that are reasonable under the circumstances. The factors specified in (1) through (8) are not exclusive. Nor will each factor be relevant in each instance. Subsection (a) also requires that expenses for which the client will be charged must be reasonable. A lawyer may seek reimbursement for the cost of services performed in-house, such as copying, or for other expenses incurred in-house, such as telephone charges, either by charging a

reasonable amount to which the client has agreed in advance or by charging an amount that reasonably reflects the cost incurred by the lawyer.

When the lawyer has regularly represented a client, the lawyer and the client ordinarily will have evolved an understanding concerning the basis or rate of the fee and the expenses for which the client will be responsible. In a new client-lawyer relationship, however, an understanding as to fees and expenses must be promptly established. Generally, it is desirable to furnish the client with at least a simple memorandum or copy of the lawyer's customary fee arrangements that states the general nature of the legal services to be provided, the basis, rate or total amount of the fee and whether and to what extent the client will be responsible for any costs, expenses or disbursements in the course of the representation. A written statement concerning the terms of the engagement reduces the possibility of misunderstanding. Absent extraordinary circumstances the lawyer should send the written fee statement to the client before any substantial services are rendered, but in any event not later than ten days after commencing the representation.

Contingent fees, like any other fees, are subject to the reasonableness standard of subsection (a) of this Rule. In determining whether a particular contingent fee is reasonable, or whether it is reasonable to charge any form of contingent fee, a lawyer must consider the factors that are relevant under the circumstances. Applicable law may impose limitations on contingent fees, such as a ceiling on the percentage allowable, or may require a lawyer to offer clients an alternative basis for the fee. Applicable law also may apply to situations other than a contingent fee, for example, government regulations regarding fees in certain tax matters. In matters where a contingent fee agreement has been signed by the client and is in accordance with General Statutes § 52-251c, the fee is presumed to be reasonable.

Terms of Payment. A lawyer may require advance payment of a fee, but is obliged to return any unearned portion. See Rule 1.16 (d). A lawyer may accept property in payment for services, such as an ownership interest in an enterprise, providing this does not involve acquisition of a proprietary interest in the cause of action or subject matter of the litigation contrary to Rule 1.8 (i). However, a fee paid in property instead of money may be subject to the requirements of Rule 1.8 (a) because such fees often have the essential qualities of a business transaction with the client.

An agreement may not be made whose terms might induce the lawyer improperly to curtail services for the client or perform them in a way contrary to the client's interest. For example, a lawyer should not enter into an agreement whereby services are to be provided only up to a stated amount when it is foreseeable that more extensive services probably will be required, unless the situation is adequately explained to the client. Otherwise, the client might have to bargain for further assistance in the midst of a proceeding or transaction. However, it is proper to define the extent of services in light of the client's ability to pay. A lawyer should not exploit a fee arrangement based primarily on hourly charges by using wasteful procedures.

Prohibited Contingent Fees. Subsection (d) prohibits a lawyer from charging a contingent fee in a domestic relations matter when payment is contingent upon the securing of a divorce or upon the amount of alimony or support or property settlement to be obtained. This provision does not preclude a contract for a contingent fee for legal representation in connection with the recovery of postjudgment balances due under support, alimony or other financial orders because such contracts do not implicate the same policy concerns.

Division of Fee. A division of fee is a single billing to a client covering the fee of two or more lawyers who are not in the same firm. A division of fee facilitates association of more than one lawyer in a matter in which neither alone could serve the client as well and most often is used when the fee is contingent and the division is between a referring lawyer and a trial specialist. Contingent fee agreements must be in writing signed by the client and must otherwise comply with subsection (c) of this Rule. A lawyer should only refer a matter to a lawyer whom the referring lawyer reasonably believes is competent to handle the matter. See Rule 1.1.

Subsection (e) does not prohibit or regulate divisions of fees to be received in the future for work done when lawyers were previously associated in a law firm.

Disputes over Fees. If an arbitration or mediation procedure such as that in Practice Book Section 2-32 (a) (3) has been established for resolution of fee disputes, the lawyer must comply with the procedure when it is mandatory, and, even when it is voluntary, the lawyer should conscientiously consider submitting to it. Law may prescribe a procedure for determining a lawyer's fee, for example, in representation of an executor or administrator, a class or a person entitled to a reasonable fee as part of the measure of damages. The

lawyer entitled to such a fee and a lawyer representing another party concerned with the fee should comply with the prescribed procedure.

AMENDMENT NOTE: The above change is made in connection with the revision to Section 3-8 (b) that allows an attorney to file a limited appearance pursuant to a pilot program that may be established by the Chief Court Administrator.

Rule 1.16. Declining or Terminating Representation

- (a) Except as stated in subsection (c), a lawyer shall not represent a client or, where representation has commenced, shall withdraw from the representation of a client if:
- (1) The representation will result in violation of the Rules of Professional Conduct or other law:
- (2) The lawyer's physical or mental condition materially impairs the lawyer's ability to represent the client; or
 - (3) The lawyer is discharged.
- (b) Except as stated in subsection (c), a lawyer may withdraw from representing a client if:
- (1) withdrawal can be accomplished without material adverse effect on the interests of the client;
- (2) the client persists in a course of action involving the lawyer's services that the lawyer reasonably believes is criminal or fraudulent;
 - (3) the client has used the lawyer's services to perpetrate a crime or fraud;
- (4) the client insists upon taking action that the lawyer considers repugnant or with which the lawyer has a fundamental disagreement;
- (5) the client fails substantially to fulfill an obligation to the lawyer regarding the lawyer's services and has been given reasonable warning that the lawyer will withdraw unless the obligation is fulfilled;
- (6) the representation will result in an unreasonable financial burden on the lawyer or has been rendered unreasonably difficult by the client; or
 - (7) other good cause for withdrawal exists.
- (c) A lawyer must comply with applicable law requiring notice to or permission of a tribunal when terminating a representation. When ordered to do so by a tribunal, a lawyer shall continue representation notwithstanding good cause for terminating the representation.

(d) Upon termination of representation, a lawyer shall take steps to the extent reasonably practicable to protect a client's interests, such as giving reasonable notice to the client, allowing time for employment of other counsel, surrendering papers and property to which the client is entitled and refunding any advance payment of fee that has not been earned. The lawyer may retain papers relating to the client to the extent permitted by other law. If the representation of the client is terminated either by the lawyer withdrawing from representation or by the client discharging the lawyer, the lawyer shall confirm the termination in writing to the client before or within a reasonable time after the termination of the representation.

COMMENTARY: A lawyer should not accept representation in a matter unless it can be performed competently, promptly, without improper conflict of interest and to completion. Ordinarily, a representation in a matter is completed when the agreed upon assistance has been concluded. See Rules 1.2 (c) and 6.5. See also Rule 1.3, Commentary.

Mandatory Withdrawal. A lawyer ordinarily must decline or withdraw from representation if the client demands that the lawyer engage in conduct that is illegal or violates the Rules of Professional Conduct or other law. The lawyer is not obliged to decline or withdraw simply because the client suggests such a course of conduct; a client may make such a suggestion in the hope that a lawyer will not be constrained by a professional obligation.

When a lawyer has been appointed to represent a client, withdrawal ordinarily requires approval of the appointing authority. See also Rule 6.2. Similarly, court approval or notice to the court is often required by applicable law before a lawyer withdraws from pending litigation. Difficulty may be encountered if withdrawal is based on the client's demand that the lawyer engage in unprofessional conduct. The court may request an explanation for the withdrawal, while the lawyer may be bound to keep confidential the facts that would constitute such an explanation. Lawyers should be mindful of their obligations to both clients and the court under Rules 1.6 and 3.3.

Withdrawal of Limited Appearance. When the lawyer has filed a limited appearance under Practice Book Section 3-8 (b) and the lawyer has completed the representation described in the limited appearance the lawyer is not required to obtain permission of the tribunal to terminate the representation before filing the certificate of completion.

Discharge. A client has a right to discharge a lawyer at any time, with or without cause, subject to liability for payment for the lawyer's services. Where future dispute about the withdrawal may be anticipated, it may be advisable to prepare a written statement reciting the circumstances.

Whether a client can discharge appointed counsel may depend on applicable law. A client seeking to do so should be given a full explanation of the consequences. These consequences may include a decision by the appointing authority that appointment of successor counsel is unjustified, thus requiring the client to represent himself or herself.

If the client has diminished capacity, the client may lack the legal capacity to discharge the lawyer, and in any event the discharge may be seriously adverse to the client's interests. The lawyer should make special effort to help the client consider the consequences and may take reasonably necessary protective action as provided in Rule 1.14.

Assisting the Client upon Withdrawal. Even if the lawyer has been unfairly discharged by the client, a lawyer must take all reasonable steps to mitigate the consequences to the client. The lawyer may retain papers as security for a fee only to the extent permitted by law. See Rule 1.5.

Confirmation in Writing. A written statement to the client confirming the termination of the relationship and the basis of the termination reduces the possibility of misunderstanding the status of the relationship. The written statement should be sent to the client before or within a reasonable time after the termination of the relationship.

AMENDMENT NOTE: The above change is made in connection with the revision to Section 3-8 (b) that allows an attorney to file a limited appearance pursuant to a pilot program that may be established by the Chief Court Administrator.

Rule 4.2. Communication with Person Represented by Counsel

In representing a client, a lawyer shall not communicate about the subject of the representation with a party the lawyer knows to be represented by another lawyer in the matter, unless the lawyer has the consent of the other lawyer or is authorized by law to do so. An otherwise unrepresented party for whom a limited appearance has been filed pursuant to Practice Book Section 3-8(b) is considered to be unrepresented for purposes of this rule as to anything other than the subject matter of the limited appearance. When a limited appearance has been filed for the party, and served on the other lawyer, or the other lawyer is otherwise notified that a limited appearance has been filed or will be filed,

that lawyer may directly communicate with the party only about matters outside the scope of the limited appearance without consulting with the party's limited appearance lawyer.

COMMENTARY: This Rule does not prohibit communication with a party, or an employee or agent of a party, concerning matters outside the representation. For example, the existence of a controversy between a government agency and a private party, or between two organizations, does not prohibit a lawyer for either from communicating with nonlawyer representatives of the other regarding a separate matter. Also, parties to a matter may communicate directly with each other and a lawyer having independent justification for communicating with the other party is permitted to do so. Communications authorized by law include, for example, the right of a party to a controversy with a government agency to speak with government officials about the matter.

In the case of an organization, this Rule prohibits communications by a lawyer for one party concerning the matter in representation with persons having a managerial responsibility on behalf of the organization, and with any other person whose act or omission in connection with that matter may be imputed to the organization for purposes of civil or criminal liability or whose statement may constitute an admission on the part of the organization. If an agent or employee of the organization is represented in the matter by his or her own counsel, the consent by that counsel to a communication will be sufficient for purposes of this Rule. (Compare Rule 3.4 [6]).

This Rule also covers any person, whether or not a party to a formal proceeding, who is represented by counsel concerning the matter in question.

AMENDMENT NOTE: The above change is made in connection with the revision to Section 3-8 (b) that allows an attorney to file a limited appearance pursuant to a pilot program that may be established by the Chief Court Administrator.

Rule 4.3. Dealing with Unrepresented Person

In dealing on behalf of a client with a person who is not represented by counsel, in whole or in part, a lawyer shall not state or imply that the lawyer is disinterested. When the lawyer knows or reasonably should know that the unrepresented person misunderstands the lawyer's role in the matter, the lawyer shall make reasonable efforts to correct the misunderstanding. The lawyer shall not give legal advice to an unrepresented person, other than the advice to secure counsel, if the lawyer knows or reasonably should

know that the interests of such a person are or have a reasonable possibility of being in conflict with the interests of the client.

COMMENTARY: An unrepresented person, particularly one not experienced in dealing with legal matters, might assume that a lawyer is disinterested in loyalties or is a disinterested authority on the law even when the lawyer represents a client. In order to avoid a misunderstanding, a lawyer will typically need to identify the lawyer's client and, where necessary, explain that the client has interests opposed to those of the unrepresented person. For misunderstandings that sometimes arise when a lawyer for an organization deals with an unrepresented constituent, see Rule 1.13 (d).

The Rule distinguishes between situations involving unrepresented persons whose interests may be adverse to those of the lawyer's client and those in which the person's interests are not in conflict with the client's. In the former situation, the possibility that the lawyer will compromise the unrepresented person's interests is so great that the Rule prohibits the giving of any advice, apart from the advice to obtain counsel. Whether a lawyer is giving impermissible advice may depend on the experience and sophistication of the unrepresented person, as well as the setting in which the behavior and comments occur. This Rule does not prohibit a lawyer from negotiating the terms of a transaction or settling a dispute with an unrepresented person. So long as the lawyer has explained that the lawyer represents an adverse party and is not representing the person, the lawyer may inform the person of the terms on which the lawyer's client will enter into an agreement or settle a matter, prepare documents that require the person's signature and explain the lawyer's own view of the meaning of the document or the lawyer's view of the underlying legal obligations.

See Rule 3.8 for particular duties of prosecutors in dealing with unrepresented persons.

AMENDMENT NOTE: The above change is made in connection with the revision to Section 3-8 (b) that allows an attorney to file a limited appearance pursuant to a pilot program that may be established by the Chief Court Administrator.

Sec. 3-3. Form and Signing of Appearance

(a) Except as otherwise provided in subsection (b), [E]each appearance shall (1) be filed on judicial branch form JD-CL-12, (2) include the name and number of the case, the name of the court location to which it is returnable and the date, (3) be legibly signed by

the individual preparing the appearance with the individual's own name and (4) state the party or parties for whom the appearance is being entered and the official (with position or department, if desired), firm, professional corporation or individual whose appearance is being entered, together with the juris number assigned thereto, if any, the mailing address and the telephone number. [This section shall not apply to appearances entered pursuant to Section 3-1.]

(b) Each limited appearance pursuant to Section 3-8 (b) shall (1) be filed on judicial branch form JD-XX-XX, (2) include the name and number of the case, the name of the court location to which it is returnable and the date, (3) be legibly signed by the individual preparing the appearance with the individual's own name and (4) state the party or parties for whom the appearance is being entered and the official (with position or department, if desired), firm, professional corporation or individual whose appearance is being entered, together with the juris number assigned thereto if any, the mailing address and the telephone number, (5) define the proceeding or event for which the lawyer is appearing, and (6) state that the attorney named on the limited appearance is available for service of process only for those matters described on the limited appearance. All pleadings, motions, or other documents served on the limited appearance attorney shall also be served in the same manner on the party for whom the limited appearance was filed. For all other matters, service must be made on the party instead of the attorney who filed the limited appearance, unless otherwise ordered by court.

(c) This section does not apply to appearances entered pursuant to Section 3-1.

COMMENTARY: The above change is made in connection with the revision to Section 3-8 (b) that allows an attorney to file a limited appearance pursuant to a pilot program that may be established by the Chief Court Administrator.

Sec. 3-8. Appearance for Represented Party

(a) Whenever an attorney files an appearance for a party, or the party files an appearance for himself or herself, and there is already an appearance of an attorney or party on file for that party, the attorney or party filing the new appearance shall state thereon whether such appearance is in place of or in addition to the appearance or appearances already on file. [The provisions of this section regarding parties filing appearances for themselves do not apply to criminal cases.]

(b) The Chief Court Administrator may establish, for such period or periods of time as he or she determines, a pilot program in one or more judicial districts permitting an attorney to file an appearance limited to a specific event or proceeding in matters that have been designated as being within the purview of the pilot. Limited appearances may only be filed in connection with such pilot program. If an event or proceeding in a matter in which a limited appearance has been filed has been continued to a later date, for any reason, it is not deemed completed unless otherwise ordered by the court. Except with leave of court, a limited appearance may not be filed to address a specific issue or to represent the client at or for a portion of a hearing. A limited appearance may not be limited to a particular length of time or the exhaustion of a fee. Whenever an attorney files a limited appearance for a party, the limited appearance shall be filed in addition to any self-represented appearance that the party may have already filed with the court. Upon the filing of the limited appearance, the client may not file or serve pleadings, discovery requests or otherwise represent himself or herself in connection with the proceeding or event that is the subject of the limited appearance. An attorney shall not file a limited appearance for a party when filing a new action or during the pendency of an action if there is no appearance on file for that party, unless the party for whom the limited appearance is being filed files an appearance in addition to the attorney's limited appearance at the same time. A limited appearance may not be filed on behalf of a firm or corporation. A limited appearance may not be filed in criminal or juvenile cases.

(c) The provisions of this section regarding parties filing appearances for themselves do not apply to criminal cases.

COMMENTARY: The above change to subsection (b) provides that the Chief Court Administrator may establish a pilot program allowing an attorney to file an appearance limited to a specific event or proceeding in matters within the purview of the pilot program.

Sec. 3-9. Withdrawal of Appearance; Duration of Appearance

(a) An attorney or party whose appearance has been filed shall be deemed to have withdrawn such appearance upon failure to file a written objection within ten days after written notice has been given or mailed to such attorney or party that a new appearance has been filed in place of the appearance of such attorney or party in accordance with Section 3-8. An attorney or party whose appearance is deemed to have been withdrawn

may file an appearance for the limited purpose of filing an objection to the in lieu of appearance.

(b) An attorney may withdraw his or her appearance for a party or parties in any action after the appearance of other counsel representing the same party or parties has been entered. An application for withdrawal in accordance with this subsection shall state that such an appearance has been entered and that such party or parties are being represented by such other counsel at the time of the application. Such an application may be granted by the clerk as of course, if such an appearance by other counsel has been entered.

(c) In addition to the grounds set forth in subsections (a), (b), and (d), a lawyer who represents a party or parties on a limited basis in accordance with Section 3-8 (b) and has completed his or her representation as defined in the limited appearance, shall file a certificate of completion of limited appearance on Judicial Branch form JD-YY-YY. The certificate shall constitute a full withdrawal of a limited appearance. Copies of the certificate must be served in accordance with Sections 10-12 through 10-17 on the client, and all attorneys and self-represented parties of record.

[(c)](d) All appearances of counsel shall be deemed to have been withdrawn 180 days after the entry of judgment in any action seeking a dissolution of marriage or civil union, annulment, or legal separation, provided no appeal shall have been taken. In the event of an appeal or the filing of a motion to open a judgment within such 180 days, all appearances of counsel shall be deemed to have been withdrawn after final judgment on such appeal or motion or within 180 days after the entry of the original judgment, whichever is later. Nothing herein shall preclude or prevent any attorney from filing a motion to withdraw with leave of the court during that period subsequent to the entry of judgment. In the absence of a specific withdrawal, counsel will continue of record for all postjudgment purposes until 180 days have elapsed from the entry of judgment or, in the event an appeal or a motion to open a judgment is filed within such 180 day period, until final judgment on that appeal or determination of that motion, whichever is later.

[(d)](e) Except as provided in subsections (a), (b) and (c), no attorney shall withdraw his or her appearance after it has been entered upon the record of the court without the leave of the court.

[(e)](f) All appearances in juvenile matters shall be deemed to continue during the period of delinquency probation, family with service needs supervision, or any commitment

to the commissioner of the department of children and families or protective supervision. An attorney appointed by the chief public defender to represent a parent in a pending neglect or uncared for proceeding shall continue to represent the parent for any subsequent petition to terminate parental rights if the parent appears at the first hearing on the termination petition and qualifies for appointed counsel, unless the attorney files a motion to withdraw pursuant to Section 3-10 that is granted by the judicial authority or the parent requests a new attorney. The attorney shall represent the client in connection with appeals, subject to Section 35a-20, and with motions for review of permanency plans, revocations or postjudgment motions and shall have access to any documents filed in court. The attorney for the child shall continue to represent the child in all proceedings relating to the child, including termination of parental rights and during the period until final adoption following termination of parental rights.

COMMENTARY: The above change is made in connection with the revision to Section 3-8 (b) that allows an attorney to file a limited appearance pursuant to a pilot program that may be established by the Chief Court Administrator.

Sec. 4-2. Signing of Pleading

- (a) Every pleading and other paper of a party represented by an attorney shall be signed by at least one attorney of record in the attorney's individual name. A party who is not represented by an attorney shall sign his or her pleadings and other papers. The name of the attorney or party who signs such document shall be legibly typed or printed beneath the signature.
- (b) The signing of any pleading, motion, objection or request shall constitute a certificate that the signer has read such document, that to the best of the signer's knowledge, information and belief there is good ground to support it, that it is not interposed for delay, and that the signer has complied with the requirements of Section 4-7 regarding personal identifying information. Each pleading and every other court-filed document signed by an attorney or party shall set forth the signer's telephone number and mailing address.
- (c) An attorney may assist a client in preparing a pleading, motion or other document to be signed and filed in court by the client. In such cases, the attorney shall insert the notation "prepared with assistance of counsel" on any pleading, motion or document prepared by the attorney. The attorney is not required to sign the pleading,

motion or document and the filing of such a pleading, motion or document shall not constitute an appearance by the attorney.

COMMENTARY: The above change is made in connection with the revision to Section 3-8 (b) that allows an attorney to file a limited appearance pursuant to a pilot program that may be established by the Chief Court Administrator.

Appendix D (032512) mins

Sec. 2-55. Retirement of Attorney -Right of Revocation

- (a) An attorney who is admitted to the bar in the state of Connecticut and is not the subject of any pending disciplinary investigation may submit a written request on a form approved by the office of the chief court administrator to the statewide bar counsel for retirement under this section. Upon receipt of the request, the statewide bar counsel shall review it and, if it is found that the attorney is eligible for retirement under this section, shall grant the request and notify the attorney and the clerk for the judicial district of Hartford. [Written notice of retirement from the practice of law, pursuant to the provisions of General Statutes § 51-81b,] Retirement shall not constitute removal from the bar or the roll of attorneys, but it shall be noted on the roll of attorneys kept by the clerk for the judicial district of [in] Hartford. [county who shall notify the statewide bar counsel of such retirement. The notice shall include the attorney's juris number and be filed in triplicate with such clerk. Upon the filing of such notice] If the request is granted, the attorney shall no longer be eligible to practice law as an attorney admitted in the state of Connecticut, except as provided in subsection (e) of this section. [Retirement may be revoked at any time upon written notice to the clerk for Hartford county and the statewide bar counsel. Disciplinary proceedings against an attorney shall not be stayed or terminated on account of the attorney's retirement from the practice of law.]
- (b) An attorney who has retired pursuant to this section shall thereafter be exempt from payment of the client security fund fee set forth in Section 2-70(a), but must continue to comply with the registration requirements set forth in Sections 2-26 and 2-27(d).
- (c) An attorney who has retired pursuant to this section and thereafter wishes to revoke the retirement and be eligible to practice law again in the state of Connecticut may do so at any time by sending written notice to the clerk for the judicial district of Hartford and the statewide bar counsel.
- (d) Retirement pursuant to this section shall not be a bar to the initiation, investigation and pursuit of disciplinary complaints filed on or subsequent to the date of retirement.

(e) An attorney who has retired pursuant to this section may engage in uncompensated services to clients under the supervision of an organized legal aid society, a state or local bar association project, or a court-affiliated pro bono program.

Sec. 2-55A. Retirement of Attorney – Permanent (NEW)

- (a) An attorney who is admitted to the bar in the state of Connecticut and is not the subject of any pending disciplinary investigation may submit a written request on a form approved by the office of the chief court administrator to the statewide bar counsel for permanent retirement under this section. Upon receipt of the request, the statewide bar counsel shall review it and, if it is found that the attorney is eligible for retirement under this section, shall grant the request and notify the attorney and the clerk for the judicial district of Hartford. Retirement shall not constitute removal from the bar or the roll of attorneys, but it shall be noted on the roll of attorneys kept by the clerk for the judicial district of Hartford. If granted, the attorney shall no longer be eligible to practice law as an attorney admitted in the state of Connecticut.
- (b) An attorney who has retired pursuant to this section shall thereafter be exempt from the registration requirements set forth in Sections 2-26 and 2-27(d) and from payment of the client security fund fee set forth in Section 2-70(a).
- (c) An attorney who has retired pursuant to this section and thereafter wishes to be eligible to practice law again in the state of Connecticut must apply for admission to the bar pursuant to Sections 2-8 or 2-13.
- (d) Retirement pursuant to this section shall not be a bar to the initiation, investigation and pursuit of disciplinary complaints filed on or subsequent to the date of retirement.

APPENDIX E (032513) mins

Sec. 14-8. Certifying That Pleadings Are Closed

(a) A case [shall not] may be scheduled for trial at any time by order of the court. [until a party accurately certifies on a form to be supplied by the clerk that] When the pleadings are closed on the issue or issues in the case as to all parties, an accurate certificate of closed pleadings shall be filed within ten days. Any party may file the certificate. Upon [receiving such a certification] the filing of the certificate of closed pleadings, [the clerk shall refer] the case [to the presiding judge to] shall be scheduled for a trial as soon as the court's docket permits if it has not already been scheduled for a trial.

(b) If the case is claimed as privileged, the ground of privilege as defined in Section 14-9 shall be stated. If the privilege claimed arises from some other statute or rule giving a matter precedence for trial, the applicable provisions shall be cited with specificity.

[(b)](c) An administrative appeal may be placed on the administrative appeal trial list [without the necessity for a claim] at the direction of the judicial authority, pursuant to Section 14-7A or 14-7B or in accordance with subsections (a) and (b) of this section.

[(c)](d) This section shall not apply to summary process matters.

COMMENTARY: The purpose of this revision is to permit the court to issue scheduling orders setting trial dates before the issues have been joined and the pleadings have been closed, a practice that the existing rule prohibits. The proposed rule comports with General Statutes § 52-215 which provides that a case may be entered on the jury docket by written request of either party made to the clerk "within thirty days of the return date" or "upon written consent of all parties, or by order of the court" at any time or "within ten days after" an issue of fact is joined. The proposed revision does not supersede the requirement of filing a jury claim along with the appropriate statutory fee. The requirement to file a certificate of closed pleadings (JD-CV-11) is retained to allow for a written claim of privilege and the selection of a trial list. Additionally, the certificate assists the presiding judge, caseflow coordinators and clerks with case management. The proposed revision provides more flexibility to the court to assign trial dates.

Sec. 17-44. Summary Judgments; Scope of Remedy

In any action, [except] including administrative appeals which are [not] enumerated in Section 14-7, any party may move for a summary judgment [at any time, except that the party must obtain the judicial authority's permission to file a motion for summary judgment after the case has been assigned for trial] as to any claim or defense as a matter of right at any time if no scheduling order exists and the case has not been assigned for trial. If a scheduling order has been entered by the court, either party may move for summary judgment as to any claim or defense as a matter of right by the time specified in the scheduling order. If no scheduling order exists but the case has been assigned for trial, a party must move for permission of the judicial authority to file a motion for summary judgment. These rules shall be applicable to counterclaims and cross complaints, so that any party may move for summary judgment upon any counterclaim or cross complaint as if it were an independent action. The pendency of a motion for summary judgment shall delay trial only at the discretion of the trial judge.

COMMENTARY: This change clarifies that a party may move for summary judgment in administrative appeals enumerated in Section 14-7. It also clarifies that summary judgment may be obtained as to a defense as well as to an affirmative claim for relief. The section also incorporates scheduling orders in delineating when the filing of a motion for summary judgment is a matter of right and when the permission of the judicial authority is required.

APPENDIX F (032513) mins

Sec. 8-1. [Mesne] Process

- (a) [Mesne p]Process in civil actions shall be a writ of summons or attachment, describing the parties, the court to which it is returnable and the time and place of appearance, and shall be accompanied by the plaintiff's complaint. Such writ may run into any judicial district or geographical area and shall be signed by a commissioner of the superior court or a judge or clerk of the court to which it is returnable. Except in those actions and proceedings indicated below, the writ of summons shall be on a form substantially in compliance with the following judicial branch forms prescribed by the chief court administrator: Form JD-FM-3 in family actions, Form JD-HM-32 in summary process actions, and Form JD-CV-1 in other civil actions, as such forms shall from time to time be amended. Any person proceeding without the assistance of counsel shall sign the complaint and present the complaint and proposed writ of summons to the clerk; the clerk shall review the proposed writ of summons and, unless it is defective as to form, shall sign it.
- (b) For administrative appeals brought pursuant to General Statutes §§ 4-183 et seq., process and service of process shall be made in accordance with General Statutes §§ 4-183(c)(1) and (c)(2) and Practice Book Section 14-7A(a).
- [(b)](c) Form JD-FM-3, Form JD-HM-32, and Form JD-CV-1 shall not be used in the following actions and proceedings:
 - (1) Applications for change of name.
 - (2) Proceedings pertaining to arbitration.
 - (3) Probate appeals.
 - (4) Administrative appeals.
 - (5) Verified petitions for paternity.
 - (6) Verified petitions for support orders.
 - (7) Any actions or proceedings in which an attachment, garnishment or replevy is sought.
 - (8) Applications for custody.
 - (9) Applications for visitation.

[(c)](d) A plaintiff may, before service on a defendant, alter printed forms JD-FM-3, JD-HM-32, and JD-CV-1 in order to make them conform to any relevant amendments to the rules of practice or statutes.

COMMENTARY: The intent of the revisions to Sections 8-1, 14-6, 14-7, 14-7A and 14-7B is to streamline and clarify the process of filing administrative appeals and to reduce the size of the record that is filed with the court.

Sec. 14-6. Administrative Appeals Are Civil Actions

For purposes of these rules, administrative appeals are civil actions <u>subject to the provisions</u> and <u>exclusions</u> of <u>General Statutes §§ 4-183 et seq.</u> and the <u>Practice Book</u>. Whenever these rules refer to civil actions, actions, civil causes, causes or cases, the reference shall include administrative appeals except that an administrative appeal shall not be deemed an action for purposes of <u>Section 10-8 of these rules or for General Statutes §§ 52-48, 52-591, 52-592 or 52-593.</u>

COMMENTARY: The intent of the revisions to Sections 8-1, 14-6, 14-7, 14-7A and 14-7B is to streamline and clarify the process of filing administrative appeals and to reduce the size of the record that is filed with the court.

Sec. 14-7. [Trial List for Administrative Appeals; Briefs; Placing Cases Thereon] Administrative Appeals; Exceptions

[(a) Except as provided in subsections (b), (c) and (d) below, or except as otherwise permitted by the judicial authority in its discretion, in an administrative appeal, the record shall be filed as prescribed in Section 14-7B below or as otherwise prescribed by statute; the defendant's answer shall be filed within the time prescribed by Section 10-8; the plaintiff's brief shall be filed within thirty days after the filing of the defendant's answer or the return of the record, whichever is later; and the defendant's brief shall be filed within thirty days of the plaintiff's brief. No brief shall exceed thirty-five pages without permission of the judicial authority. A motion for extension of time within which to file the return of record, the answer, or any brief shall be made to the judicial authority before the due date of the filing which is the subject of the motion. The motion shall set forth the reasons therefor and shall contain a statement of the respective positions of the opposing parties with regard to the motion. The motion shall also state whether any previous motion for extension of time was made and the judicial authority's action thereon. If a party fails

timely to file the record, answer, or brief in compliance with this subsection, the judicial authority may, on its own motion or on motion of one of the parties, and after hearing, make such order as the ends of justice require. Such orders may include but are not limited to the following or any combination thereof:

- (1) An order that the party not in compliance pay the costs of the other parties, including reasonable attorney's fees;
 - (2) If the party not in compliance is the plaintiff, an order dismissing the appeal;
- (3) If the party not in compliance is a defendant, an order sustaining the appeal, an order remanding the case, or an order dismissing such defendant as a party to the appeal;
- (4) If the board or agency has failed to file the record within the time permitted, an order allowing any other party to prepare and file a record of the administrative proceedings and an order that the board or agency pay the reasonable costs, including attorney's fees, of such party.]
- [(b)](a) Appeals from the employment security board of review shall follow the procedure set forth in chapter 22 of these rules.
- [(c)](b) Workers' compensation appeals taken to the appellate court shall follow the procedure set forth in the Rules of Appellate Procedure.
- [(d) The following administrative appeals shall, subsequent to the filing of the appeal, follow the same course of pleading as that followed in ordinary civil actions:
- (1) Appeals from municipal boards of tax review taken pursuant to General Statutes § § 12-117a and 12-119.
 - (2) Appeals from municipal assessors taken pursuant to General Statutes § 12-103.
 - (3) Appeals from the commissioner of revenue services.
- . (4) Appeals from the insurance commissioner taken pursuant to General Statutes § 38a-139.
 - (5) Any other appeal in which the parties are entitled to a trial de novo.]
- (c) Appeals in which the parties are entitled to a trial de novo, including but not limited to (1) Appeals from municipal boards of tax review taken pursuant to General Statutes §§ 12-117a and 12-119; (2) Appeals from municipal assessors taken pursuant to General Statutes § 12-103; (3) Appeals from the commissioner of revenue services; and (4) Appeals from the insurance commissioner taken pursuant to General Statutes § 38a-139; are excluded from the procedures prescribed in Section 14-7A and 14-7B below, and

shall, subsequent to the filing of the appeal, follow the same course of pleading as that followed in ordinary civil actions.

[(e)](d) Administrative appeals are not subject to the pretrial rules, except as otherwise provided in Sections 14-7A and 14-7B.

COMMENTARY: The intent of the revisions to Sections 8-1, 14-6, 14-7, 14-7A and 14-7B is to streamline and clarify the process of filing administrative appeals and to reduce the size of the record that is filed with the court.

Sec. 14-7A. [Withdrawal or Settlement of Zoning and Inland Wetlands Appeals to Superior Court] —Administrative Appeals brought pursuant to General Statutes §§ 4-183 et seq.; Appearances; Records, Briefs and Scheduling

[No appeal under General Statutes §§ 8-8 or 22a-43 shall be withdrawn and no settlement between the parties to any such appeal shall be effective unless and until a hearing has been held before the superior court and such court has approved such proposed withdrawal or settlement. No decision that is appealed under General Statutes §§ 8-8 or 22a-43 shall be modified by settlement or stipulated judgment unless the terms of the settlement or stipulated judgment have been approved at a public meeting of the municipal agency that issued the decision. The proposed settlement shall be identified on the agenda of such meeting, which agenda shall be posted in accordance with the applicable requirements of General Statutes §§ 1-210 et seq., and the reasons for such approval shall be stated on the record during such public meeting of such agency and before the court. The court may inquire about the procedure followed by the agency, inquire of the parties whether settlement was reached by coercion or intimidation, and consider any other factors that the court deems appropriate. No notice of the court proceeding other than normal publication of the calendar and notice to the parties is required unless otherwise ordered by the court.]

(a) Administrative appeals brought pursuant to General Statutes §§ 4-183 et seq. shall be served in accordance with applicable law either by certified or registered mail of the appeal, and a notice of filing and recognizance on a form substantially in compliance with Form JD-CV-XX prescribed by the chief court administrator or by personal service of the appeal, and a citation and recognizance on a form substantially in compliance with Form JD-CV-XX prescribed by the chief court administrator. The appeal shall be filed with the court in accordance with General Statutes § 4-183(c).

- (b) In administrative appeals brought pursuant to General Statutes §§ 4-183 et seq. the defendant shall file an appearance within thirty days of service made pursuant to General Statutes § 4-183(c). Within thirty days of the filing of the defendant's appearance, or if a motion to dismiss is filed, within forty-five days of the denial of a motion to dismiss, the agency shall file with the court and transmit to all parties a certified list of the papers in the record as set forth in General Statutes § 4-183(g), and, unless otherwise excluded by law or subject to a pending motion by either party, shall make the existing listed papers available for inspection by the parties.
- (c) Except as provided in Section 14-7, or except as otherwise permitted by the judicial authority in its discretion, in an administrative appeal brought pursuant to General Statutes §§ 4-183 et seq., the record shall be transmitted and filed in accordance with this section. For the purposes of this section, the term "papers" shall include any and all documents, transcripts, exhibits, plans, minutes, agendas, correspondence, or other materials, regardless of format, which are part of the entire record of the proceeding appealed from described in General Statutes §§ 4-183(g) and 4-177(d), including additions to the record pursuant to General Statutes § 4-183(h).
- (d) No less than thirty days after the filing of the certified list of papers in the record under subsection (b), the court and the parties will set up a conference to establish which of the contents of the record are to be transmitted, and will set up a scheduling order, including dates for the filing of the designated contents of the record; for the filing of appropriate pleading and briefs; and for conducting appropriate conferences and hearings. No brief shall exceed thirty-five pages without permission of the judicial authority. At the conference, the court shall also determine which, if any, of the designated contents of the record shall be transmitted to the parties and/or the court in paper format because such papers are either difficult to reproduce electronically or difficult to review in electronic format.
- (e) The agency shall transmit to the court certified copies of the designated contents of the record established in accordance with subsection (d).
- (f) If any party seeks to include in such party's brief or appendices, papers the party deems material to its claim or position, which were not part of the designated contents of the record determined under subsection (d) but were on the certified list filed in accordance with subsection (b), such party shall file an amendment to the record as of right attaching such papers. In the event such an amendment to the record as of right is filed, the

scheduling order may be adjusted to provide either party with additional time to file a brief or reply brief.

- (g) No party shall include in such party's brief or appendices, papers that were neither part of the designated contents of the record under subsection (d), nor on the certified list filed in accordance with subsection (b), unless the court requires or permits subsequent corrections of additions to the record under General Statutes 4-183(g) or unless an application for leave to present additional evidence is filed and granted under General Statutes § 4-183(h) or (i).
- (h) Disputes about the contents of the record or other motion, application or objection will be heard as otherwise scheduled by the court.
- (i) If a party is not in compliance with the scheduling order, the judicial authority may, on its own motion or on motion of one of the parties, and after hearing, make such order, including sanctions, as the ends of justice require.
- (j) Any hearings to consider the taxation of costs in accordance with General Statutes § 4-183(g) shall be conducted after the court renders its decision on the appeal.

COMMENTARY: The intent of the revisions to Sections 8-1, 14-6, 14-7, 14-7A and 14-7B is to streamline and clarify the process of filing administrative appeals and to reduce the size of the record that is filed with the court.

Sec. 14-7B. [Record in Administrative Appeals; Exceptions] <u>Administrative Appeals from Municipal Land Use, Historic and Resource Protection Agencies; Records, Briefs and Scheduling; Withdrawal or Settlement</u>

- (a) Except as provided in [subsection (b), (c), and (d) of] Sections 14-7 or 14-7A, [or appeals taken pursuant to General Statutes § 4-183,] for appeals from municipal land use, historic, and resource protection agencies, the board or agency shall transmit and file the record in accordance with this section. For the purposes of this Section 14-7B, the term "papers" shall include any and all documents, transcripts, exhibits, plans, minutes, agendas, correspondence, or other materials, regardless of format, which are part of the return of record described in General Statutes § 8-8 (i), including additions to the record per § 8-8 (k).
- (b) Within thirty days of the return date, the board or agency shall transmit a certified list of the papers in the record to all parties and shall make the existing listed papers available for inspection by the parties.

- (c) The first time that the appeal appears on the administrative appeals calendar, the court and the parties will establish, or will set up a conference to establish, which of the contents of the record are to be transmitted, and will set up a scheduling order, which will include dates for the filing of the designated contents of the record; for the filing of appropriate pleading and briefs; and for conducting appropriate conferences and hearings. [which will include dates for the filing of the designated contents of the record, for the submission of briefs and reply briefs, for pretrials or other appropriate conferences, and for the hearing on the administrative appeal.] No brief shall exceed thirty-five pages without permission of the judicial authority. At the conference, the court shall also determine which, if any, of the designated contents of the record shall be transmitted to the parties and/or the court in paper format because such papers are either difficult to reproduce electronically or difficult to review in electronic format. [Disputes about the contents of the record or other motions, applications or objections will be heard on the administrative appeals calendar or as otherwise scheduled by the court. Any hearings to consider the taxation of costs in accordance with General Statutes § 8-8 (i) shall be conducted after the court renders its decision on the appeal.]
- (d) The board or agency shall transmit to the court and all parties (1) the certified list of papers in the record that was transmitted to the parties under subsection (b) of this section; and (2) certified copies of the designated contents of the record established in accordance with subsection (c).
- (e) If any party seeks to include in such party's brief or appendices papers the party deems material to its claim or position, which were not part of the designated contents of the record determined under subsection (c) but were on the certified list filed in accordance with subsection (b), such party shall file an amendment to the record as of right attaching such papers. In the event such an amendment to the record as of right is filed, the scheduling order may be adjusted to provide either party with additional time to file a brief or reply brief.
- (f) No party shall include in such party's brief or appendices, papers that were neither part of the designated contents of the record under subsection (c), nor on the certified list filed in accordance with subsection (b), unless the court grants permission to supplement the records with such papers pursuant to General Statutes § 8-8 (k).

- (g) Disputes about the contents of the records or other motions, application or objections will be heard on the administrative appeals calendar or as otherwise scheduled by the court.
- (h) If a party is not in compliance with the scheduling order, the judicial authority may, on its own motion or on motion of one of the parties, and after hearing, make such order, including sanctions, as the ends of justice require.
- (i) Any hearings to consider taxation of costs in accordance with General Statute § 8-8(i) shall be conducted after the court renders its decision on the appeal.
- (j) No appeal under General Statutes §§ 8-8 or 22a-43 shall be withdrawn and no settlement between the parties to any such appeal shall be effective unless and until a hearing has been held before the superior court and such court has approved such proposed withdrawal or settlement. No decision that is appealed under General Statutes §§ 8-8 or 22a-43 shall be modified by settlement or stipulated judgment unless the terms of the settlement or stipulated judgment have been approved at a public meeting of the municipal agency that issued the decision. The proposed settlement shall be identified on the agenda of such meeting, which agenda shall be posted in accordance with the applicable requirements of General Statutes §§ 1-210 et seq., and the reasons for such approval shall be stated on the record during such public meeting of such agency and before the court. The court may inquire about the procedure followed by the agency, inquire of the parties whether settlement was reached by coercion or intimidation, and consider any other factors that the court deems appropriate. No notice of the court proceeding other than normal publication of the calendar and notice to the parties is required unless otherwise ordered by the court.

COMMENTARY: The intent of the revisions to Sections 8-1, 14-6, 14-7, 14-7A and 14-7B is to streamline and clarify the process of filing administrative appeals and to reduce the size of the record that is filed with the court.

APPENDIX G (032513) mins

Sec. 5-1. Trial Briefs

The parties [may, as of right, or] shall, if the judicial authority so orders, file, at such time as the judicial authority shall determine, written trial briefs discussing the issues in the case and the factual or legal basis upon which they ought to be resolved.

COMMENTARY: The revision to this section is to allow trial briefs to be filed only at the discretion of the judicial authority.

APPENDIX H (032513) mins

[Sec. 5-9. Citation of Opinion Not Officially Published

An opinion which is not officially published may be cited before a judicial authority only if the person making reference to it provides the judicial authority and opposing parties with copies of the opinion.]

COMMENTARY: This rule is being repealed as unnecessary because opinions that are not officially published are easily accessible to the court and most parties on the internet and through on-line legal research services.

Sec. 10-8. Time to Plead

Commencing on the return day of the writ, summons and complaint in civil actions, pleadings, including motions and requests addressed to the pleadings, shall [first] advance within thirty days from the return day, and any subsequent pleadings, motions and requests shall advance at least one step within each successive period of [fifteen] thirty days from the preceding pleading or the filing of the decision of the judicial authority thereon if one is required, except that in summary process actions the time period shall be three days and in actions to foreclose a mortgage on real estate the initial time period shall be fifteen days. The filing of interrogatories or requests for discovery shall not suspend the time requirements of this section unless upon motion of either party the judicial authority shall find that there is good cause to suspend such time requirements.

COMMENTARY: The amount of time permitted for the filing of pleadings in civil actions has been extended from fifteen days to thirty days to allow additional time for counsel and self-represented parties to review and respond to filings. By extending the time for parties to respond to new pleadings from fifteen to thirty days, it is expected that parties will not find it necessary to frequently seek an extension of time to plead.

Sec. 10-30. Motion to Dismiss; [Request for Extension of Time to Respond] Grounds

- (a) A motion to dismiss shall be used to assert (1) lack of jurisdiction over the subject matter, (2) lack of jurisdiction over the person, (3) improper venue, (4) insufficiency of process, and (5) insufficiency of service of process.
- (b) Any defendant, wishing to contest the court's jurisdiction, [may do so even after having entered a general appearance, but must] shall do so by filing a motion to dismiss within

thirty days of the filing of an appearance. [Except in summary process matters, the motion shall be placed on the short calendar to be held not less than fifteen days following the filing of the motion, unless the judicial authority otherwise directs. Any adverse party may, within ten days of the filing of the motion with the court, file a request for extension of time to respond to the motion. The clerk shall grant the request and cause the motion to appear on the short calendar not less than thirty days from the filing of the request.]

(c) This motion shall always be filed with a supporting memorandum of law, and where appropriate, with supporting affidavits as to facts not apparent on the record.

COMMENTARY: The proposed revisions to this section and Section 10-31 on filing of a motion to dismiss and a response to it separate the requirements so that Section 10-30 contains all the requirements for filing a motion to dismiss: the time for filing, the grounds for filing and the requirement that it be accompanied by a memorandum of law. Section 10-31 contains the requirements for filing a response to a motion to dismiss and the information on when the motion can be placed on the calendar. Combining the requirements in this way simplifies the filing of a motion to dismiss and a response, and mirrors the revisions made to the rules on filing a motion to strike.

Sec. 10-31. [—Grounds of Motion to Dismiss] —Opposition; Date for Hearing Motion to Dismiss

- [(a) The motion to dismiss shall be used to assert (1) lack of jurisdiction over the subject matter, (2) lack of jurisdiction over the person, (3) improper venue, (4) insufficiency of process, and (5) insufficiency of service of process. This motion shall always be filed with a supporting memorandum of law, and where appropriate, with supporting affidavits as to facts not apparent on the record.
- (b) Any adverse party who objects to this motion shall, at least five days before the motion is to be considered on the short calendar, file and serve in accordance with Sections 10-12 through 10-17 a memorandum of law and, where appropriate, supporting affidavits as to facts not apparent on the record.]
- (a) Any adverse party shall have thirty days to respond to the motion to dismiss by filing and serving in accordance with Sections 10-12 through 10-17 a memorandum of law in opposition and, where appropriate, supporting affidavits as to facts not apparent on the record.
- (b) Except in summary process matters, the motion shall be placed on the short calendar to be held not less than forty-five days following the filing of the motion, unless the judicial

authority otherwise orders. If an evidentiary hearing is required, any party shall file a request for such hearing with the court.

COMMENTARY: The revised rule now includes all requirements for responding to a motion to dismiss, and specifically allows thirty days for the filing of a response to allow additional time for counsel and self-represented parties to review and respond to a motion to dismiss. By extending and clarifying the time for parties to respond, the drafters expect that parties will not find it necessary to seek an extension of time to plead as frequently. The rule, therefore, no longer contains the provision for filing a request for extension of time although that would not preclude parties from moving for an extension when necessary.

Sec. 10-39. Motion to Strike Grounds

- (a) A motion to strike shall be used [W]whenever any party wishes to contest (1) the legal sufficiency of the allegations of any complaint, counterclaim or cross claim, or of any one or more counts thereof, to state a claim upon which relief can be granted, or (2) the legal sufficiency of any prayer for relief in any such complaint, counterclaim or cross complaint, or (3) the legal sufficiency of any such complaint, counterclaim or cross complaint, or any count thereof, because of the absence of any necessary party or, pursuant to Section 17-56 (b), the failure to join or give notice to any interested person, or (4) the joining of two or more causes of action which cannot properly be united in one complaint, whether the same be stated in one or more counts, or (5) the legal sufficiency of any answer to any complaint, counterclaim or cross complaint, or any part of that answer including any special defense contained therein, that party may do so by filing a motion to strike the contested pleading or part thereof.
- (b) Each claim of legal insufficiency enumerated in this section shall be separately set forth, and shall specify the reason or reasons for such claimed insufficiency.
- (c) Each motion to strike must be accompanied by a memorandum of law citing the legal authorities upon which the motion relies.

[(b)](d) A motion to strike on the ground of the nonjoinder of a necessary party or noncompliance with Section 17-56 (b) must give the name and residence of the missing party or interested person or such information as the moving party has as to the identity and residence of the missing party or interested person and must state the missing party's or interested person's interest in the cause of action.

COMMENTARY: The proposed revision moves the requirements that a motion to strike separately set forth each claim of legal insufficiency together with the reason or reasons for the

claim, and that the motion be accompanied by a memorandum of law from Section 10-41 and Section 10-42 so that all the requirements for filing the motion are found in the same section.

Sec. 10-40. —Opposition; Date for Hearing Motion to Strike [Request for Extension of Time to Respond]

[Except in summary process matters, the motion shall be placed on the short calendar to be held not less than fifteen days following the filing of the motion, unless the judicial authority otherwise directs. Any adverse party may, within ten days of the filing of the motion with the court, file a request for extension of time to respond to the motion. The clerk shall grant the request and cause the motion to appear on the short calendar not less than thirty days from the filing of the request.]

- (a) Any adverse party shall have thirty days to respond to a motion to strike filed pursuant to Sec. 10-39 by filing and serving in accordance with Sections 10-12 through 10-17 a memorandum of law in opposition.
- (b) Except in summary process matters, the motion to strike shall be placed on the short calendar to be held not less than forty-five days following the filing of the motion, unless the judicial authority otherwise orders.

COMMENTARY: The rule has been revised to include all requirements for filing a response to a motion to strike, including the time for filing the memorandum of law and the information on when the motion can be placed on the short calendar. The revised rule also provides additional time for counsel and self-represented parties to review and respond to a motion to strike. By extending the time for parties to respond, the drafters expect that parties will not find it necessary to seek an extension of time to file a response as frequently. The revision has also eliminated provision for filing a request for extension of time although that would not preclude parties from moving for an extension when necessary.

[Sec. 10-41. —Reasons in Motion to Strike

Each motion to strike raising any of the claims of legal insufficiency enumerated in the preceding sections shall separately set forth each such claim of insufficiency and shall distinctly specify the reason or reasons for each such claimed insufficiency.]

COMMENTARY: The provisions of this rule have been incorporated into Sections 10-39(b).

[Sec. 10-42. —Memorandum of Law—Motion and Objection

- (a) Each motion to strike must be accompanied by an appropriate memorandum of law citing the legal authorities upon which the motion relies.
- (b) Any adverse party who objects to this motion shall, at least five days before the date the motion is to be considered on the short calendar, file and serve in accordance with Sections 10-12 through 10-17 a memorandum of law.]

COMMENTARY: The provisions of this rule have been incorporated into Sections 10-39 and 10-40.

Sec. 13-1. Definitions

- (a) For purposes of this chapter, (1) "statement" means (A) a written statement in the handwriting of the person making it, or signed, or initialed, or otherwise in writing adopted or approved by the person making it; or (B) a stenographic, mechanical, electrical or other recording or a transcription thereof, which is a substantially verbatim recital of an oral statement by the person making it and which is contemporaneously recorded; (2) "party" means (A) a person named as a party in the action, or (B) an agent, employee, officer, or director of a public or private corporation, partnership, association, or governmental agency, named as a party in the action; (3) "representative" includes agent, attorney, consultant, indemnitor, insurer, and surety; (4) "electronic" means relating to technology having electrical, digital, magnetic, wireless, optical, electromagnetic, or similar capabilities; (5) "electronically stored information" means information that is stored in an electronic medium and is retrievable in perceivable form.
- (d) herein is deemed incorporated by reference into all discovery requests served pursuant to this chapter, and shall preclude any broader definition of a term defined in paragraph (c), but shall not preclude: (i) the definition of other terms specific to the particular litigation, (ii) the use of abbreviations, or (iii) a more narrow definition of a term defined in paragraph (c).
 - (c) The following definitions apply to all discovery requests:
- (1) Communication. The term 'communication' means the transmittal of information (in the form of facts, ideas, inquiries or otherwise).
- (2) Document. The term 'document' means any writing, drawing, graph, chart, photograph, sound recording, image, and other data or data compilation, stored in any medium from which information can be obtained either directly or, if necessary, after translation by the responding party into a reasonably usable form. A draft or non-identical coy is a separate document within the meaning of this term. A request for production of 'documents' shall (032513) Appendix H

Secs 5-9, (10-8,30,31,39,40,41,42) (13-1,3,6,9) Forms 201-206

encompass, and the response shall include, electronically stored information, as defined in subsection (a) above, unless otherwise specified by the requesting party

- (3) Identify (With Respect to Persons). When referring to a person, to 'identify' means to provide, to the extent known, the person's full name, present or last known address, and when referring to a natural person, additionally, the present or last known place of employment. Once a person has been identified in accordance with this subdivision, only the name of that person need be listed in response to subsequent discovery requesting the identification of that person.
- (4) Identify (With Respect to Documents or Electronically Stored Information). When referring to documents or electronically stored information, to 'identify' means to provide, to the extent known, information about the (i) type of document or electronically stored information; (ii) its general subject matter; (iii) the date of the document or electronically stored information; and (iv) author(s), addressee(s) and recipient(s).
- (5) Identify (With Respect to Oral Communications). When referring to an oral communication, to "identify" means (i) to state the date and place of the oral communication; (ii) to identify all persons hearing, present or participating in the communication; (iii) to state whether the communication was in person, by telephone, or by some other means or medium; (iv) to summarize what was said by each such person, or provide a transcript if one is available.
- (6) Identify (With Respect to an Act or Event). When referring to an act or event, to "identify" means (i) to describe the act or event, including its location and its date; (ii) to identify the persons participating, present or involved in the act or event; (iii) to identify all communications which were made at the act or event identified; and (iv) to identify all documents concerning the act or event identified.
- (7) Person. The term 'person' is defined as any natural person or any business, legal or governmental entity or association.
- (8) Concerning. The term 'concerning' means relating to, referring to, describing, evidencing or constituting.
- (9) You. The term "you" means the party or person to whom a discovery request is directed, except that: (i) if the party is the representative of the estate of a decedent, ward, or incapable person, "you" shall also refer to the party's decedent, ward or incapable person, unless the context of the discovery request clearly indicates otherwise; and (ii) notwithstanding section (b) above, the propounding party may specify a different definition of the term "you."
 - (d) The following rules of construction apply to all discovery requests:
 - (1) All/Each. The terms 'all' and 'each' shall both be construed as all and each.

- (2) And/Or. The connectives 'and' and 'or' shall be construed either disjunctively or conjunctively as necessary to bring within the scope of the discovery request all responses that might otherwise be construed to be outside its scope.
 - (3) Number. The use of the singular form of any word includes the plural and vice versa.
- (4) Gender. Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, the use of any pronoun or gender-identified form of any word includes both the male and female genders.

COMMENTARY: The purpose of amending this section on definitions of terms commonly used in discovery requests is to provide comprehensive standard definitions that are broad enough to encompass the information necessary to litigating a claim, but not unduly burdensome. These definitions are taken largely from the Local Rules of the U.S. District Court for the District of Connecticut, so many Connecticut practitioners will be familiar with them. The absence of standard definitions has resulted in the proliferation of discovery requests with overly complex and burdensome definitions that increase the volume of discovery disputes. The proposed definitions are not meant to inhibit the ability of a respondent to raise an objection to a request based upon its being burdensome under the circumstances of a particular case.

Sec. 13-3. —Materials Prepared in Anticipation of Litigation; Statements of Parties; Privilege Log

- (a) Subject to the provisions of Section 13-4, a party may obtain discovery of documents and tangible things otherwise discoverable under Section 13-2 and prepared in anticipation of litigation or for trial by or for another party or by or for that other party's representative only upon a showing that the party seeking discovery has substantial need of the materials in the preparation of the case and is unable without undue hardship to obtain the substantial equivalent of the materials by other means. In ordering discovery of such materials when the required showing has been made, the judicial authority shall not order disclosure of the mental impressions, conclusions, opinions, or legal theories of an attorney or other representative of a party concerning the litigation.
- (b) A party may obtain, without the showing required under this section, discovery of the party's own statement and of any nonprivileged statement of any other party concerning the action or its subject matter.
- (c) A party may obtain, without the showing required under this section, discovery of any recording, by film, photograph, videotape, audiotape or any other digital or electronic means, of the requesting party and of any recording of any other party concerning the action or the subject matter, thereof, including any transcript of such recording. A party may obtain information (032513) Appendix H

Secs 5-9, (10-8,30,31,39,40,41,42) (13-1,3,6,9) Forms 201-206

identifying any such recording and transcript, if one was created, prior to the deposition of the party who is the subject of the recording; but the person from whom discovery is sought shall not be required to produce the recording or transcript until thirty days after the completion of the deposition of the party who is the subject of the recording or sixty days prior to the date the case is assigned to commence trial, whichever is earlier; except that if a deposition of the party who is the subject of the recording was not taken, the recording and transcript shall be produced sixty days prior to the date the case is assigned to commence trial. If a recording was created within such sixty day period, the recording and transcript must be produced immediately. No such recording or transcript is required to be identified or produced if neither it nor any part thereof will be introduced into evidence at trial. However, if any such recording or part or transcript thereof is required to be identified or produced, all recordings and transcripts thereof of the subject of the recording party shall be identified and produced, rather than only those recordings, or transcripts or parts thereof that the producing party intends to use or introduce at trial.

(d) When a claim of privilege or work product protection has been asserted pursuant to Sections 13-5 or 13-10 in response to a discovery request for documents or electronically stored information, the party asserting the privilege or protection shall provide, within forty-five days from the request of the party serving the discovery, the following information in the form of a privilege log.

- (1) The type of document or electronically stored information;
- (2) The general subject matter of the document or electronically stored information;
- (3) The date of the document or electronically stored information;
- (4) The author of the document or electronically stored information;
- (5) Each recipient of the document or electronically stored information; and
- (6) The nature of the privilege or protection asserted.

The privilege log shall initially be served upon all parties but not filed in court.

If the information called for by one or more of the foregoing categories is itself privileged, it need not be disclosed. However, the existence of the document and any nonprivileged information called for by the other categories must be disclosed.

A privilege log must be prepared with respect to all documents and electronically stored information withheld on the basis of a claim of privilege or work product protection except for the following: written or electronic communications after commencement of the action between a party and the firm or lawyer appearing for the party in the action or as otherwise ordered by the judicial authority.

COMMENTARY: Currently the rules do not require the preparation of a privilege log or define the contents of one. In those cases where protective orders or objections to production requests are based upon a claim of privilege, the privilege log will assist the parties and the judicial authority in narrowing the scope of the dispute, including the number and nature of documents or electronically stored information for which there is a claim of privilege. The addition of subsection (d) to this rule defines the contents of the privilege log and when it must be prepared and served on other parties. Providing a standard for the privilege log will reduce disputes and increase judicial economy. This rule is limited to parties to the underlying litigation. If a document subpoena issues to a non-party and there is an objection on the ground of privilege, the court may order the production of a privilege log but the non-party will not be required to produce one in the absence of a court order. See Woodbury Knoll, LLC. V. Shipman & Goodwin, LLP., 305 Conn. 750, 779-80 (2012).

Sec. 13-6. Interrogatories; In General

- (a) In any civil action, in any probate appeal, or in any administrative appeal where the judicial authority finds it reasonably probable that evidence outside the record will be required, any party may serve in accordance with Sections 10-12 through 10-17 written interrogatories, which may be in electronic format, upon any other party to be answered by the party served. Written interrogatories may be served upon any party without leave of the judicial authority at any time after the return day. Except as provided in subsection (c) or where the interrogatories are served electronically as provided in Section 10-13 and in a format that allows the recipient to electronically insert the answers in the transmitted document, the party serving interrogatories shall leave sufficient space following each interrogatory in which the party to whom the interrogatories are directed can insert the answer. In the event that an answer requires more space than that provided on interrogatories that were not served electronically and in a format that allows the recipient to electronically insert the answers in the transmitted document, the answer shall be continued on a separate sheet of paper which shall be attached to the completed answers.
- (b) Interrogatories may relate to any matters which can be inquired into under Sections 13-2 through 13-5 and the answers may be used at trial to the extent permitted by the rules of evidence. In all personal injury actions alleging liability based on the operation or ownership of a motor vehicle or alleging liability based on the ownership, maintenance or control of real property, the interrogatories shall be limited to those set forth in Forms 201, 202 and/or 203 of the rules of practice, unless upon motion, the judicial authority determines that such (032513) Appendix H

interrogatories are inappropriate or inadequate in the particular action. These forms are set forth in the Appendix of Forms in this volume. Unless the judicial authority orders otherwise, the frequency of use of interrogatories in all actions except those for which interrogatories have been set forth in Forms 201, 202 and/or 203 of the rules of practice is not limited.

- (c) In lieu of serving the interrogatories set forth in Forms 201, 202 and/or 203 on a party who is represented by counsel, the moving party may serve on such party a notice of interrogatories, which shall not include the actual interrogatories to be answered, but shall instead set forth the number of the Practice Book form containing such interrogatories and the name of the party to whom the interrogatories are directed. The party to whom such notice is directed shall in his or her response set forth each interrogatory immediately followed by that party's answer thereto.
- (d) The party serving interrogatories or the notice of interrogatories shall not file them with the court.
- (e) Unless leave of court is granted, the instructions to forms 201 through 203 are to be used for all nonstandard interrogatories.

COMMENTARY: Creating standard instructions to be used in both standard and nonstandard interrogatories requests will eliminate the need to file objections to instructions that seek to impose an obligation on a respondent that goes beyond that imposed by the rules. Many discovery disputes will be avoided and the process as a whole will be streamlined.

Sec. 13-9. Requests for Production, Inspection and Examination; In General

(a) In any civil action, in any probate appeal, or in any administrative appeal where the judicial authority finds it reasonably probable that evidence outside the record will be required, any party may serve in accordance with Sections 10-12 through 10-17 upon any other party a request to afford the party submitting the request the opportunity to inspect, copy, photograph or otherwise reproduce designated documents [(including, but not limited to, writings, drawings, graphs, charts, photographs, phonograph records and electronically stored information as provided in subsection (d))] or to inspect and copy, test or sample any tangible things in the possession, custody or control of the party upon whom the request is served or to permit entry upon designated land or other property for the purpose of inspection, measuring, surveying, photographing, testing or sampling the property or any designated object or operation thereon. Such requests will be governed by the provisions of Sections 13-2 through 13-5. In all personal injury actions alleging liability based on the ownership, maintenance or control of real property, the requests for (032513) Appendix H

Secs 5-9, (10-8,30,31,39,40,41,42) (13-1,3,6,9) Forms 201-206

production shall be limited to those set forth in Forms 204, 205 and/or 206 of the rules of practice, unless, upon motion, the judicial authority determines that such requests for production are inappropriate or inadequate in the particular action. These forms are set forth in the Appendix of Forms in this volume.

- (b) Requests for production may be served upon any party without leave of court at any time after the return day. In lieu of serving the requests for production set forth in Forms 204, 205 and/or 206 on a party who is represented by counsel, the moving party may serve on such party a notice of requests for production, which shall not include the actual requests, but shall instead set forth the number of the Practice Book form containing such requests and the name of the party to whom the requests are directed.
- (c) The request shall clearly designate the items to be inspected either individually or by category. The request or, if applicable, the notice of requests for production shall specify a reasonable time, place and manner of making the inspection. Unless the judicial authority orders otherwise, the frequency of use of requests for production in all actions except those for which requests for production have been set forth in Forms 204, 205, and/or 206 of the rules of practice is not limited.
- (d) If information has been electronically stored, and if a request for production does not specify a form for producing a type of electronically stored information, the responding party shall produce the information in a form in which it is ordinarily maintained or in a form that is reasonably usable. A party need not produce the same electronically stored information in more than one form.
- (e) The party serving such request or notice of requests for production shall not file it with the court.
- [(f) A party seeking the production of a written authorization in compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act to inspect and make copies of protected health information, or a written authorization in compliance with the Public Health Service Act to inspect and make copies of alcohol and drug records that are protected by that act, shall file a motion pursuant to Section 13-11A. A motion need not be filed to obtain such authorization in actions to which Forms 204 and 205 of the rules of practice apply.]
- (f) Unless leave of court is granted, the instructions to forms 204 through 206 are to be used for all nonstandard requests for production.
- (g) A party seeking the production of a written authorization in compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act to inspect and make copies of protected health information, or a written authorization in compliance with the Public Health Service Act to (032513) Appendix H

inspect and make copies of alcohol and drug records that are protected by that act, shall file a motion pursuant to Section 13-11A. A motion need not be filed to obtain such authorization in actions to which forms 204 and 205 of the rules of practice apply.

COMMENTARY: Creating standard instructions to be used in both standard and nonstandard requests for production will eliminate the need to file objections to instructions that seek to impose an obligation on a respondent that goes beyond that imposed by the rules. Many discovery disputes will be avoided and the process as a whole will be streamlined. In addition, since the term "document" is now defined in Section 13-1(c)(2), it is redundant to define it in this section as well.

Form 201

Plaintiff's Interrogatories

No. CV-(Plaintiff) VS. : SUPERIOR COURT : JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF

AT

(Defendant)

: (Date)

The undersigned, on behalf of the Plaintiff, hereby propounds the following interrogatories to be answered by the Defendant, ________, under oath, within thirty (30) days of the filing hereof [insofar as the disclosure sought will be of assistance in the prosecution of this action and can be provided by the Defendant with substantially greater facility than could otherwise be obtained]. Definition: "You" shall mean the Defendant to whom these interrogatories are directed except that if that Defendant has been sued as the representative of the estate of a decedent, ward, or incapable person, "you" shall also refer to the Defendant's decedent, ward or incapable person unless the context of an interrogatory clearly indicates otherwise.

In answering these Interrogatories, the Defendant(s), is (are) required to provide all information within their knowledge, possession or power. If an Interrogatory has subparts, answer each subpart separately and in full, and do not limit the answer to the Interrogatory as a whole. If any Interrogatories cannot be answered in full, answer to the extent possible.

- (1) State the following:
- (a) your full name and any other name(s) by which you have been known;
- (b) your date of birth;
- (c) your motor vehicle operator's license number;
- (d) your home address;
- (e) your business address;
- (f) if you were not the owner of the subject vehicle, the name and address of the owner or lessor of the subject vehicle on the date of the alleged occurrence.
- (2) Have you made any statements, as defined in Practice Book Section 13-1, to any person regarding any of the incidents alleged in the Complaint?

COMMENT:

This interrogatory is intended to include party statements made to a representative of an insurance company prior to involvement of defense counsel.

(3) If the answer to Interrogatory #2 is affirmative, state: (032513) Appendix H Secs 5-9, (10-8,30,31,39,40,41,42) (13-1,3,6,9) Forms 201-206

- (a) the name and address of the person or persons to whom such statements were made;
 - (b) the date on which such statements were made;
- (c) the form of the statement (i.e., whether written, made by recording device or recorded by a stenographer, etc.);
- (d) the name and address of each person having custody, or a copy or copies of each statement.
- (4) State the names and addresses of all persons known to you who were present at the time of the incident alleged in the Complaint or who observed or witnessed all or part of the incident.
- (5) As to each individual named in response to Interrogatory #4, state whether to your knowledge, or the knowledge of your attorney, such individual has given any statement or statements as defined in Practice Book Section 13-1 concerning the subject matter of the Complaint in this lawsuit. If your answer to this Interrogatory is affirmative, state also:
 - (a) the date on which the statement or statements were taken:
- (b) the names and addresses of the person or persons who took such statement or statements;
- (c) the names and addresses of any person or persons present when such statement or statements were taken:
- (d) whether such statement or statements were written, made by recording device or taken by court reporter or stenographer;
- (e) the names and addresses of any person or persons having custody or a copy or copies or such statement or statements.
- (6) Are you aware of any photographs depicting the accident scene, any vehicle involved in the incident alleged in the Complaint, or any condition or injury alleged to have been caused by the incident alleged in the Complaint? If so, for each set of photographs taken of each such subject by each photographer, please state:
- (a) the name and address of the photographer, other than an expert who will not testify at trial:
 - (b) the dates on which such photographs were taken;
 - (c) the subject (e.g., "Plaintiff's vehicle," "scene," etc.);
 - (d) the number of photographs.

- (7) If, at the time of the incident alleged in the Complaint, you were covered by an insurance policy under which an insurer may be liable to satisfy part or all of a judgment or reimburse you for payments to satisfy part or all of a judgment, state the following:
 - (a) the name(s) and address(es) of the insured(s);
 - (b) the amount of coverage under each insurance policy;
 - (c) the name(s) and address(es) of said insurer(s).
- (8) If at the time of the incident which is the subject of this lawsuit you were protected against the type of risk which is the subject of this lawsuit by excess umbrella insurance, or any other insurance, state:
 - (a) the name(s) and address(es) of the named insured;
 - (b) the amount of coverage effective at this time;
 - (c) the name(s) and address(es) of said insurer(s).
- (9) State whether any insurer, as described in Interrogatories #7 and #8 above, has disclaimed/ reserved its duty to indemnify any insured or any other person protected by said policy.
 - (10) If applicable, describe in detail the damage to your vehicle.
- (11) If applicable, please state the name and address of an appraiser or firm which appraised or repaired the damage to the vehicle owned or operated by you.
- (12) If any of the Defendants are deceased, please state the date and place of death, whether an estate has been created, and the name and address of the legal representative thereof.
- (13) If any of the Defendants is a business entity that has changed its name or status as a business entity (whether by dissolution, merger, acquisition, name change, or in any other manner) since the date of the incident alleged in the Complaint, please identify such Defendant, state the date of the change, and describe the change.
- (14) If you were the operator of any motor vehicle involved in the incident that is the subject of this action, please state whether, at the time of the incident, you were operating that vehicle in the course of your employment with any person or legal entity not named as a party to this lawsuit, and, if so, state the full name and address of that person or entity.
- (15) If you were the operator of any motor vehicle involved in the incident that is the subject of this action, please state whether you consumed or used any alcoholic beverages, drugs or medications within the eight (8) hours next preceding the time of the incident alleged in the Complaint and, if so, indicate what you consumed or used, how much you consumed, and when.

- (16) Please state whether, within eight (8) hours after the incident alleged in the Complaint, any testing was performed to determine the presence of alcohol, drugs or other medications in your blood, and, if so, state:
 - (a) the name and address of the hospital, person or entity performing such test or screen;
 - (b) the date and time;
 - (c) the results.
- (17) Please identify surveillance material discoverable under Practice Book Section 13-3 (c), by stating the name and address of any person who obtained or prepared any and all recordings, by film, photograph, videotape, audiotape, or any other digital or electronic means, of any party concerning this lawsuit or its subject matter, including any transcript thereof which are in your possession or control or in the possession or control of your attorney, and state the date on which each such recordings were obtained and the person or persons of whom each such recording was made.

	PLAINTIFF,
	BY
I,, hereby Interrogatories and responses thereto and that the knowledge and belief. (Defendant) Subscribed and day of, 20	
CERTIFICA	Notary Public/ Commissioner of the Superior Court
This is to certify that a copy of the for	egoing has been mailed, this day of resses of all opposing counsel and self-
	(Attorney Signature)

Form 202

Defendant's Interrogatories

No. CV-(Plaintiff) : SUPERIOR COURT

: JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF

VS.

(Defendant)

: (Date)

The undersigned, on behalf of the Defendant, hereby propounds the following interrogatories to be answered by the Plaintiff, under oath, within thirty (30) days of the filing hereof [insofar as the disclosure sought will be of assistance in the defense of this action and can be provided by the Plaintiff with substantially greater facility than could otherwise be obtained in compliance with Practice Book Section 13-2.

Definition: "You" shall mean the Plaintiff to whom these interrogatories are directed except that if suit has been instituted by the representative of the estate of a decedent, ward, or incapable person, "you" shall also refer to the Plaintiff's decedent, ward or incapable person unless the context of an interrogatory clearly indicates otherwise.

In answering these Interrogatories, the Plaintiff(s), is (are) required to provide all information within their knowledge, possession or power. If an Interrogatory has subparts, answer each subpart separately and in full, and do not limit the answer to the Interrogatory as a whole. If any Interrogatories cannot be answered in full, answer to the extent possible.

- (1) State the following:
- (a) your full name and any other name(s) by which you have been known;
- (b) your date of birth;
- (c) your motor vehicle operator's license number;
- (d) your home address;
- (e) your business address;
- (f) if you were not the owner of the subject vehicle, the name and address of the owner or lessor of the subject vehicle on the date of the alleged occurrence.
- (2) Identify and list each injury you claim to have sustained as a result of the incidents alleged in the Complaint.
 - (3) When, where and from whom did you first receive treatment for said injuries?
- (4) If you were treated at a hospital for injuries sustained in the alleged incident, state the name and location of each hospital and the dates of such treatment and confinement therein.

- (5) State the name and address of each physician, therapist or other source of treatment for the conditions or injuries you sustained as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint.
- (6) When and from whom did you last receive any medical attention for injuries alleged to have been sustained as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint?
- (7) On what date were you fully recovered from the injuries or conditions alleged in your Complaint?
- (8) If you claim you are not fully recovered, state precisely from what injuries or conditions you are presently suffering?
- (9) Are you presently under the care of any doctor or other health care provider for the treatment of injuries alleged to have been sustained as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint?
- (10) If the answer to Interrogatory #9 is in the affirmative, state the name and address of each physician or other health care provider who is treating you.
- (11) Do you claim any present disability resulting from injuries or conditions allegedly sustained as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint?
 - (12) If so, state the nature of the disability claimed.
 - (13) Do you claim any permanent disability resulting from said incident?
 - (14) If the answer to Interrogatory #13 is in the affirmative, please answer the following:
 - (a) list the parts of your body which are disabled;
- (b) list the motions, activities or use of your body which you have lost or which you are unable to perform;
 - (c) state the percentage of loss of use claimed as to each part of your body;
- (d) state the name and address of the person who made the prognosis for permanent disability and the percentage of loss of use:
 - (e) list the date for each such prognosis.
- (15) If you were or are confined to your home or your bed as a result of injuries or conditions sustained as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint, state the dates you were so confined.
- (16) List each medical report received by you or your attorney relating to your alleged injuries or conditions by stating the name and address of the treating doctor or other health care provider, and of any doctor or health care person you anticipate calling as a trial witness, who provided each such report and the date thereof.

- (17) List each item of expense which you claim to have incurred as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint, the amount thereof and state the name and address of the person or organization to whom each item has been paid or is payable.
- (18) For each item of expense identified in response to Interrogatory #17, if any such expense, or portion thereof, has been paid or reimbursed or is reimbursable by an insurer, state, as to each such item of expense, the name of the insurer that made such payment or reimbursement or that is responsible for such reimbursement.
- (19) If, during the ten year period prior to the date of the incident alleged in the Complaint, you were under a doctor's care for any conditions which were in any way similar or related to those identified and listed in your response to Interrogatory #2, state the nature of said conditions, the dates on which treatment was received, and the name of the doctor or health care provider.
- (20) If, during the ten year period prior to the date of the incident alleged in your Complaint, you were involved in any incident in which you received personal injuries similar or related to those identified and listed in your response to Interrogatory #2, please answer the following with respect to each such earlier incident:
 - (a) on what date and in what manner did you sustain such injuries?
 - (b) did you make a claim against anyone as a result of said accident?
- (c) if so, provide the name and address of the person or persons against whom a claim was made;
- (d) if suit was brought, state the name and location of the Court, the return date of the suit, and the docket number;
 - (e) state the nature of the injuries received in said accident;
 - (f) state the name and address of each physician who treated you for said injuries;
 - (g) state the dates on which you were so treated;
 - (h) state the nature of the treatment received on each such date;
- (i) if you are presently or permanently disabled as a result of said injuries, please state the nature of such disability, the name and address of each physician who diagnosed said disability and the date of each such diagnosis.
- (21) If you were involved in any incident in which you received personal injuries since the date of the incident alleged in the Complaint, please answer the following:
 - (a) on what date and in what manner did you sustain said injuries?
 - (b) did you make a claim against anyone as a result of said accident?

- (c) if so, provide the name and address of the person or persons against whom a claim was made;
- (d) if suit was brought, state the name and location of the Court, the return date of the suit, and the docket number;
 - (e) state the nature of the injuries received in said accident;
 - (f) state the name and address of each physician who treated you for said injuries;
 - (g) state the dates on which you were so treated;
 - (h) state the nature of the treatment received on each such date;
- (i) if you are presently or permanently disabled as a result of said injuries, please state the nature of such disability, the name and address of each physician who diagnosed said disability and the date of each such diagnosis.
- (22) Please state the name and address of any medical service provider who has rendered an opinion in writing or through testimony that you have sustained a permanent disability to any body part other than those listed in response to Interrogatories #13, #14, #20 or #21, and:
 - (a) list each such part of your body that has been assessed a permanent disability;
 - (b) state the percentage of loss of use assessed as to each part of your body;
 - (c) state the date on which each such assessment was made.
- (23) If you claim that as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint you were prevented from following your usual occupation, or otherwise lost time from work, please provide the following information:
- (a) the name and address of your employer on the date of the incident alleged in the Complaint;
- (b) the nature of your occupation and a precise description of your job responsibilities with said employer on the date of the incident alleged in the Complaint;
- (c) your average, weekly earnings, salary, or income received from said employment for the year preceding the date of the incident alleged in the Complaint;
- (d) the date following the date of the incident alleged in the Complaint on which you resumed the duties of said employment;
- (e) what loss of income do you claim as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint and how is said loss computed?
- (f) the dates on which you were unable to perform the duties of your occupation and lost time from work as a result of injuries or conditions claimed to have been sustained as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint;

- (g) the names and addresses of each employer for whom you worked for three years prior to the date of the incident alleged in your Complaint.
 - (24) Do you claim an impairment of earning capacity?
- (25) List any other expenses or loss and the amount thereof not already set forth and which you claim to have incurred as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint.
- (26) If you have signed a covenant not to sue, a release or discharge of any claim you had, have or may have against any person, corporation or other entity as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint, please state in whose favor it was given, the date thereof, and the consideration paid to you for giving it.
- (27) If you or anyone on your behalf agreed or made an agreement with any person, corporation or other entity to limit in any way the liability of such person, corporation or other entity as a result of any claim you have or may have as a result of the incident alleged in your Complaint, please state in whose favor it was given, the date thereof, and the consideration paid to you for giving it.
- (28) If since the date of the incident alleged in your Complaint, you have made any claims for Workers' Compensation benefits, state the nature of such claims and the dates on which they were made.
- (29) Have you made any statements, as defined in Practice Book Section 13-1, to any person regarding any of the events or happenings alleged in your Complaint?

COMMENT:

This interrogatory is intended to include party statements made to a representative of an insurance company prior to involvement of defense counsel.

- (30) State the names and addresses of all persons known to you who were present at the time of the incident alleged in your Complaint or who observed or witnessed all or part of the accident.
- (31) As to each individual named in response to Interrogatory #30, state whether to your knowledge, or the knowledge of your attorney, such individual has given any statement or statements as defined in Practice Book Section 13-1 concerning the subject matter of your Complaint or alleged injuries. If your answer to this Interrogatory is affirmative, state also:
 - (a) the date on which such statement or statements were taken;
- (b) the names and addresses of the person or persons who took such statement or statements:

- (c) the names and addresses of any person or persons present when such statement or statements were taken:
- (d) whether such statement or statements were written, made by recording device or taken by court reporter or stenographer;
- (e) the names and addresses of any person or persons having custody or a copy or copies of such statement or statements.
- (32) Are you aware of any photographs depicting the accident scene, any vehicle involved in the incident alleged in the Complaint, or any condition of injury alleged to have been caused by the incident alleged in the Complaint? If so, for each set of photographs taken of each such subject by each photographer, please state:
- (a) the name and address of the photographer, other than an expert who will not testify at trial;
 - (b) the dates on which such photographs were taken;
 - (c) the subject (e.g., "Plaintiff's vehicle," "scene," etc.);
 - (d) the number of photographs.
- (33) If you were the operator of any motor vehicle involved in the incident that is the subject of this action, please state whether you consumed or used any alcoholic beverages, drugs or medications within the eight (8) hours next preceding the time of the incident alleged in the Complaint and, if so, indicate what you consumed or used, how much you consumed, and when.
- (34) Please state whether, within eight (8) hours after the incident alleged in the Complaint, any testing was performed to determine the presence of alcohol, drugs or other medications in your blood, and, if so, state:
- (a) the name and address of the hospital, person or entity performing such test or screen;
 - (b) the date and time;
 - (c) the results.
- (35) Please identify surveillance material discoverable under Practice Book Section 13-3 (c), by stating the name and address of any person who obtained or prepared any and all recordings, by film, photograph, videotape, audiotape or any other digital or electronic means, of any party concerning this lawsuit or its subject matter, including any transcript thereof which are in your possession or control or in the possession or control of your attorney, and state the date on which each such recordings were obtained and the person or persons of whom each such recording was made.

DEFENDANT,

	BY
I,, herebouterrogatories and responses thereto and that the knowledge and belief.	y certify that I have reviewed the above hey are true and accurate to the best of my
	(Plaintiff)
Subscribed and sworn to before me this	day of, 20
	Notary Public
CERTI	FICATION
This is to certify that a copy of the for, 20 to	egoing has been mailed, this day of
	(Attorney Signature)

Form 203

Plaintiff's Interrogatories

Premises Liability Cases

No. CV- : SUPERIOR COURT (Plaintiff) : JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF VS. : AT (Defendant) : (Date)

The undersigned, on behalf of the Plaintiff, hereby propounds the following interrogatories to be answered by the Defendant, _______, under oath, within thirty (30) days of the filing hereof [insofar as the disclosure sought will be of assistance in the prosecution of this action and can be provided by the Defendant with substantially greater facility than could otherwise be obtained] in compliance with Practice Book Section 13-2.

In answering these Interrogatories, the Defendant(s), is (are) required to provide all information within their knowledge, possession or power. If an Interrogatory has subparts, answer each subpart separately and in full, and do not limit the answer to the Interrogatory as a whole. If any Interrogatories cannot be answered in full, answer to the extent possible.

- (1) Identify the person(s) who, at the time of the Plaintiff's alleged injury, owned the premises where the Plaintiff claims to have been injured.
 - (a) If the owner is a natural person, please state:
 - (i) your name and any other name by which you have been known;
 - (ii) your date of birth;
 - (iii) your home address;
 - (iv) your business address.
 - (b) If the owner is not a natural person, please state:
 - (i) your name and any other name by which you have been known;
 - (ii) your business address;
 - (iii) the nature of your business entity (corporation, partnership, etc.);
 - (iv) whether you are registered to do business in Connecticut;
 - (v) the name of the manager of the property, if applicable.
- (2) Identify the person(s) who, at the time of the Plaintiff's alleged injury, had a possessory interest (e.g., tenants) in the premises where the Plaintiff claims to have been injured.

(032513) Appendix H Secs 5-9, (10-8,30,31,39,40,41,42) (13-1,3,6,9) Forms 201-206

- (3) Identify the person(s) responsible for the maintenance and inspection of the premises at the time and place where the Plaintiff claims to have been injured.
- (4) State whether you had in effect at the time of the Plaintiff's injuries any written policies or procedures that relate to the kind of conduct or condition the Plaintiff alleges caused the injury.
- (5) State whether it is your business practice to prepare, or to obtain from your employees, a written report of the circumstances surrounding injuries sustained by persons on the subject premises.
- (6) State whether any written report of the incident described in the Complaint was prepared by you or your employees in the regular course of business.
- (7) State whether any warnings or caution signs or barriers were erected at or near the scene of the incident at the time the Plaintiff claims to have been injured.
 - (8) If the answer to the previous interrogatory is in the affirmative, please state:
- (a) the name, address and employer of the person who erected the warning or caution signs or barriers;
- (b) the name, address and employer who instructed the person to erect the warning or caution signs or barriers;
 - (c) the time and date a sign or barrier was erected;
 - (d) the size of the sign or barrier and wording that appeared thereon.
- (9) State whether you received, at any time within twenty-four (24) months before the incident described by the Plaintiff, complaints from anyone about the defect or condition that the Plaintiff claims caused the Plaintiff's injury.
 - (10) If the answer to the previous interrogatory is in the affirmative, please state:
 - (a) the name and address of the person who made the complaint;
 - (b) the name, address and person to whom said complaint was made;
 - (c) whether the complaint was in writing;
 - (d) the nature of the complaint.
- (11) Please identify surveillance material discoverable under Practice Book Section 13-3 (c), by stating the name and address of any person who obtained or prepared any and all recordings, by film, photograph, videotape, audiotape or any other digital or electronic means, of any party concerning this lawsuit or its subject matter, including any transcript thereof which are in your possession or control or in the possession or control of your attorney, and state the date on which each such recordings were obtained and the person or persons of whom each such

recording was n	nade. 12-23.	(Interrogatories #1	(a) through (e), #2 t	hrough #9,	#12,	#13	and
#16 of Form 201	1 may be use	d to complete this s	tandard set of	interrog	atories.)			

PLAINTIFF,

BY

Form 204

Plaintiff's Requests for Production

No. CV-(Plaintiff) VS. : SUPERIOR COURT : JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF

VS. : AT (Defendant) : (Date)

The Plaintiff(s) hereby request(s) that the Defendant provide counsel for the Plaintiff(s) with copies of the documents described in the following requests for production, or afford counsel for said Plaintiff(s) the opportunity or, if necessary, sufficient written authorization, to inspect, copy, photograph or otherwise reproduce said documents. The production of such documents, copies or written authorization shall take place at the offices of on (day), (date) at (time).

In answering these production requests, the plaintiff(s), are required to provide all information within their possession, custody or control. If any production request cannot be answered in full, answer to the extent possible.

Definition: "You" shall mean the Defendant to whom these interrogatories are directed except that if that Defendant has been sued as the representative of the estate of a decedent, ward, or incapable person, "you" shall also refer to the Defendant's decedent, ward or incapable person unless the context of an interrogatory clearly indicates otherwise.

- (1) A copy of the appraisal or bill for repairs as identified in response to Interrogatory #11.
- (2) A copy of declaration page(s) of each insurance policy identified in response to Interrogatory #7 and/or #8.
- (3) If the answer to Interrogatory #9 is in the affirmative, a copy of the complete policy contents of each insurance policy identified in response to Interrogatory #7 and/or #8.
 - (4) A copy of any photographs identified in response to Interrogatory #6.
- (5) A copy of any nonprivileged statement, as defined in Practice Book Section 13-1, of any party in this lawsuit concerning this action or its subject matter.
- (6) A copy of all lease agreements pertaining to any motor vehicle involved in the incident which is the subject of this action, which was owned or operated by you or your employee, and all documents referenced or incorporated therein.
- (7) A copy of all records of blood alcohol testing or drug screens referred to in answer to Interrogatory #16, or a signed authorization, sufficient to comply with the provisions of the

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act or those of the Public Health Service Act, whichever is applicable, to obtain the same for each hospital, person or entity that performed such test or screen. Information obtained pursuant to the provisions of HIPAA or the Public Health Service Act shall not be used or disclosed by the parties for any purpose other than the litigation or proceeding for which such information is requested.

(8) A copy of each and every recording of surveillance material discoverable under Practice Book Section 13-3 (c), by film, photograph, videotape, audiotape or any other digital or electronic means, of any party to this lawsuit concerning this lawsuit or the subject matter thereof, including any transcript of such recording.

					PLA	INTIFF,			
This	is	to	certify that		FICAT		_ has :	been mailed,	this
			day	of			 	, 20	to
					(Atto	rney Signat	ure)		

Form 205

Defendant's Requests for Production

No. CV-(Plaintiff) VS. : SUPERIOR COURT : JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF

VS. (Defendant)

: AT : (Date)

The Defendant(s) hereby request(s) that the Plaintiff provide counsel for the Defendant(s) with copies of the documents described in the following requests for production, or afford counsel for said Defendant(s) the opportunity or, where requested, sufficient written authorization, to inspect, copy, photograph or otherwise reproduce said documents. The production of such documents, copies or written authorizations shall take place at the offices of ________ not later than thirty (30) days after the service of the Requests for Production. In answering these production requests, the Plaintiff(s) are required to provide all information within their possession, custody or control. If any production request cannot be answered in full, answer to the extent possible.

- (1) All hospital records relating to treatment received as a result of the alleged incident, and to injuries, diseases or defects to which reference is made in the answers to Interrogatories #19, #20, #21 and #22, or written authorization, sufficient to comply with the provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, to inspect and make copies of said hospital records. Information obtained pursuant to the provisions of HIPAA shall not be used or disclosed by the parties for any purpose other than the litigation or proceeding for which such information is requested.
- (2) All reports and records of all doctors and all other care providers relating to treatment allegedly received by the Plaintiff(s) as a result of the alleged incident, and to the injuries, diseases or defects to which reference is made in the answers to Interrogatories #19, #20, #21 and #22 (exclusive of any records prepared or maintained by a licensed psychiatrist or psychologist) or written authorization, sufficient to comply with provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, to inspect and make copies of said reports. Information obtained pursuant to the provisions of HIPAA shall not be used or disclosed by the parties for any purpose other than the litigation or proceeding for which such information is requested.
- (3) If a claim for lost wages or lost earning capacity is being made copies of, or sufficient written authorization to inspect and make copies of, the wage and employment records of all (032513) Appendix H Secs 5-9, (10-8,30,31,39,40,41,42) (13-1,3,6,9) Forms 201-206

employers of the Plaintiff(s) for three (3) years prior to the date of the incident and for all years subsequent to the date of the incident to and including the date hereof.

- (4) If a claim of impaired earning capacity or lost wages is being alleged, provide copies of, or sufficient written authorization to obtain copies of, that part of all income tax returns relating to lost income filed by the Plaintiff(s) for a period of three (3) years prior to the date of the incident and for all years subsequent to the date of the incident through the time of trial.
- (5) All property damage bills that are claimed to have been incurred as a result of this incident.
- (6) All medical bills that are claimed to have been incurred as a result of this incident or written authorization, sufficient to comply with the provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability

Act, to inspect and make copies of said medical bills. Information obtained pursuant to the provisions of HIPAA shall not be used or disclosed by the parties for any purpose other than the litigation or proceeding for which such information is requested.

- (7) All bills for each item of expense that is claimed to have been incurred in the answer to Interrogatory #18, and not already provided in response to ¶5 and ¶6 above.
- (8) Copies of all documentation of claims of right to reimbursement provided to the Plaintiff by third party payors, and copies of, or written authorization, sufficient to comply with provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, to obtain any and all documentation of payments made by a third party for medical services received or premiums paid to obtain such payment. Information obtained pursuant to the provisions of HIPAA shall not be used or disclosed by the parties for any purpose other than the litigation or proceeding for which such information is requested.
 - (9) All documents identified or referred to in the answers to Interrogatory #26.
- (10) A copy of any nonprivileged statement, as defined in Practice Book Section 13-1, of any party in this lawsuit concerning this action or its subject matter.
 - (11) Any and all photographs identified in response to Interrogatory #32.
- (12) A copy of all records of blood alcohol testing or drug screens referred to in answer to Interrogatory #35, or a signed authorization, sufficient to comply with the provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act or those of the Public Health Service Act, whichever is applicable, to obtain the same. Information obtained pursuant to the provisions of HIPAA or the Public Health Service Act shall not be used or disclosed by the parties for any purpose other than the litigation or proceeding for which such information is requested.

tter
of

(13) A copy of each and every recording of surveillance material discoverable under

Practice Book Section 13-3 (c), by film, photograph, videotape, audiotape or any other digital or

Form 206

Plaintiff's Requests for Production Premises Liability

No. CV- (Plaintiff)	: SUPERIOR COURT : JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF					
VS.	: AT					
(Defendant)	: (Date)					
The Plaintiff hereby requests that the De	efendant provide counsel for the Plaintiff with					
copies of the documents described in the following	g requests for production, or afford counsel for					
said Plaintiff the opportunity or, if necessary, su	fficient written authorization, to inspect, copy,					
photograph or otherwise reproduce said documer	nts. The production of such documents, copies					
or written authorization shall take place at the offi	ices of on					
on	(day),(date) at					
(time).						
In answering these production requests,	the Defendant(s), are required to provide all					
information within their possession, custody or	control. If any production request cannot be					
answered in full, answer to the extent possible.						
(1) A copy of the policies or procedures ide	entified in response to Interrogatory #4.					
(2) A copy of the report identified in response to Interrogatory #6.						
(3) A copy of any written complaints identif	fied in Interrogatory #10.					
(4) A copy of declaration page(s) evidenci	ing the insurance policy or policies identified in					
response to Interrogatories numbered and						
(5) A copy of any nonprivileged statement	t, as defined in Practice Book Section 13-1, of					
any party in this lawsuit concerning this action or i	its subject matter.					
(6) A copy of each and every recording	g of surveillance material discoverable under					
Practice Book Section 13-3 (c), by film, photograph	ph, videotape, audiotape or any other digital or					
electronic means, of any party to this lawsuit of	concerning this lawsuit or the subject matter					
thereof, including any transcript of such recording	•					
	PLAINTIFF,					
	CANTILL					
	ВУ					